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NOEL PALMER SIMPSON, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar No. 9642

PALMER LAW GROUP, PLLC

5532 S. Fort Apache Rd., Ste. 120

Las Vegas, NV 89148

(702) 776-7680 (702) 776-7684 Fax

noel @plgelderlaw.com

Attorney for Petitioner

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Guardianship CASENO. G12-037414-A

)
of the Person and Estate of: ) DEPT.NO. E
ELIZABETH INDIG )
)
) Date of Hearing: 07/11/12
Adult Ward. ) Time of Hearing: 10:00 a.m.
)

PETITION FOR APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY
AND GENERAL GUARDIAN OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE

COMES NOW, the Petitioner, APRIL L. PARKS, by and through her Attorney, NOEL
PALMER SIMPSON, ESQ., of the PALMER LAW GROUP, PLLC, in accordance with Chapter
159 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, whose petition respectfully represents the following to thig
Honorable Court:

1. That Petitioner, APRIL L. PARKS,I a Certified Guardian, would like to beg
appointed as Temporary and General Guardian of the Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG,
an Adult Ward.

2. That Petitioner’s mailing address is 1022 Nevada Hwy., Ste. 110, Boulder City,
Nevada, 89005.

3. That Petitioner’s date of birth is -965.

4. That Petitioner has not been judicially determined to have committed abuse,

neglect or exploitation of child, spouse, parent or other person. That Petitioner has never been

1
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convicted of a felony, nor suspended for misconduct or disbarred from the practice of law, the
practice of accounting or any other profession which involves the management or sale of money,
investments, securities or real property and requires licensure in Nevada or any other state.

5. That Petitioner is competent and capable of acting as Guardian of the Person and

Estate of the Proposed Ward, and hereby consents to act in this capacity.

6. That the Proposed Ward, ELIZABETH INDIG, was born on 1922, and id
Eighty Nine (89) years of age. She is a resident of the State of Nevada.

7. That the Proposed Ward is currently residing at Harmon Medical and Rehab
Hospital, 2170 E. Harmon Ave., Las Vegas, Nevada 89119, but is in need of placement in a
skilled nursing facility, due to her medical condition.

8. Petitioner is informed and believes, and in reliance thereon, alleges that the
Proposed Ward has been diagnosed with atrial fibrilation, pneumonia, macular degeneration,
Depression, and a left frontal subdural hematoma. The Proposed Ward is legally blind and
severely hard of hearing and is without hearing aids.

There has been a reported history of abuse and threats to do harm by her daughter, also
known as Elizabeth Indig. The Proposed Ward has told neighbors (Nelda and Monica) that her
daughter has hit, jabbed and poked her, causing pain and brusing in the sternum area and
threatened to cut her tongue out if she ever told anyone again. The attending Physician at UM(
stated to Nelda that the Proposed Ward’s head injury seems to be consistent with a forceful fall
backward and that this injury is not consistant with a simple fall.

The evening the Proposed Ward was taken to the emergency room at UMC with a head
injury, her home was ransacked and approximately $1,000.00 is missing. Although this incident
was never reported by the Proposed Wards daughter, Elder Protective Services is currently]
conducting an investigation and has turned the matter over to Metro. The police report states that
there was no apparent forced entry into the Proposed Ward’s home. In separate incidents, the
Proposed Ward claims her daughter has stolen approximately $10,000.00 in cash and numerous
jewelry items from her in the past year, and sold her car on or about April 6, 2012, foy

approximately $1,700.00. When asked for the money, she reportedly became verbally abusive.
2
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The Proposed Ward does not know which bank her accounts are with or how much
income she receives, as her daughter has taken control of all finances. At times the phone, power,
gas and water have been shut off due to non-payment.

9. In accordance with NRS 159.0523 and 159.0525, this Petition is accompanied by
a Physician’s Affidavit from Dr. Gonsaures, dated June 6, 2012, attached hereto as Exhibit
“3.” Dr. Gonsaures is a physician who is licensed to practice in Nevada and who states that the
Proposed Ward is unable to respond to a substantial and immediate risk of physical harm, is
likely to cause harm to either herself or others, and is at risk for financial loss and/o
exploitation. Additional documentation is provided to further explain the urgency of the
situation.

10. Without the appointment of a Temporary Guardian, the Proposed Ward will not
be able to continue with the care, supervision or continued assistance of others, and she will bg
unable to satisfy the need for nourishment, personal or medical care, shelter, self-protection oi
safety. Based upon her medical condition, there exists a reasonable probability that death, serious
bodily injury, or physical debilitation, will occur unless the Proposed Ward receives adequate
treatment and care. Further, without the authority of a Temporary Guardian to obtain financial
information on behalf of the Proposed Ward, and access any funds that she may have to pay for
her expenses, she is unable to apply for assistance from state and federal agencies if necessary, oi
respond to an immediate risk of financial exploitation.

11. This Guardianship is not sought for the purpose of initiating litigation, nor is the
Proposed Ward a party to any pending criminal or civil litigation.

12. To the extent known, the Proposed Ward has assets and income as set forth on
Exhibit “1.” Petitioner will file an Inventory of Guardianship assets within sixty (60) days of]
their appointment as Guardians in accordance with NRS 159.085.

13. Petitioner affirms that she has actually notified, or in good faith has tried to notify,
those persons entitled to notice pursuant to NRS 159.047, or declares that notice to those persons
is not feasible under the circumstances. The names and last known addresses of the Proposed

Ward and relatives of the Proposed Ward are attached hereto as Exhibit “2”.
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14. The Petitioner requests that all existing powers of attorney, if any, executed by the
Proposed Ward be revoked, and that no bond be in effect.

15. To enable the Petitioner to carry out the function of General Guardian of the
Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG, Petitioner requests that all the powers set forth in|
NRS 159.077 through 159.305 be vested in the General Guardian.

16. That it is in the best interest of the Proposed Ward that APRIL L. PARKS be
appointed as Temporary and General Guardian of the Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG.

17. An extension of the Temporary Guardianship is sought until such time as this
Court may hold a hearing on the General Guardianship. Said extension is required because the
Proposed Ward’s medical and mental condition renders him unable to care for himself medically
or financially, until a General Guardian is appointed.

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays for an Order of this Court as follows:

1. That the Court appoint APRIL L. PARKS, as Temporary Guardian of the Person
and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG.

2. The Court order the Clerk of the Court to issue Letters of Temporary
Guardianship to APRIL L. PARKS, upon her taking the oath required by law, without bond, and
without proof of blocked accounts being required upon issuance.

3. That the Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG
shall be authorized to secure medical assistance for the Proposed Ward, including treatment]
and/or placement in appropriate surroundings to provide for that care.

4. That APRIL L. PARKS be appointed as Temporary and General Guardian of the
Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG and authorized to obtain confidential medical and
financial information and secure the funds of the Proposed Ward, if any, wherever located. This
authority includes, but is not limited to, closing accounts in the Proposed Ward’s name, opening
of a guardianship account, and placing said funds into a said accounts for the payment of the
expenses of the Proposed Ward.

5. That a one-time release of $10,000.00 to the Temporary Guardian from the

Proposed Ward’s financial accounts be authorized for the payment of the Proposed Ward’s
4
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expenses, whether said accounts or records reflect the name of the Proposed Ward individually,
or with one or more persons or trust. Any blocked accounts shall remain blocked account until
further Order of the Court. The financial institutions subject to this Court Order include, but are
not limited to, Bank of America, Wells Fargo, Nevada State Bank, Nevada Federal Credit Union,
Citibank, Clark County Credit Union, Silver State Credit Unit, Chase, or any other financial
institution or successor in interest thereto, authorized to do business in the United States.

6. That pursuant to NRS 159.105 and 183, the Temporary and General Guardian
shall be allowed reasonable compensation for her services as Temporary Guardian and shall bej
allowed the necessary and reasonable expenses incurred in exercising her authority and
performing her duties as Temporary Guardian.

7. That the Temporary and General Guardian may hire an attorney to represent her
with said attorney allowed necessary compensation and reasonable expenses for services

rendered on behalf of the Temporary Guardian under NRS 159.105, 107, and 183.

8. That all existing powers of attorney executed by the Proposed Ward shall be
revoked.
9. That the Temporary and General Guardian shall have full access to any and all

medical records and information concerning the past and present condition and historicall
treatment of the Proposed Ward, which are or may be lodged with any persons, family members
and friends, along with any and all medical providers, physicians, hospitals, care facilities and/oy
institutions.

10. That the Temporary and General Guardian shall have full access to all historical
and current financial information for the Proposed Ward. Such information shall include, but not
be limited to, statements, cancelled checks, withdrawal authorizations and other information|
from banks, financial institutions, brokerage or mutual fund firms, the United States Social
Security Administration and other persons and agencies which have engaged in transactions|
concerning the financial affairs of the Proposed Ward, whether said accounts or records reflect
the name of the Proposed Ward individually, or with one or more persons or trust and shall

specifically include information as to the Proposed Ward’s account(s) with Bank of America,
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Wells Fargo, Nevada State Bank, Nevada Federal Credit Union, Citibank, Silver State Credif]
Unit, Clark County Credit Union, Chase, or any other institution, or successor in interest thereto.

11. That the Temporary and General Guardian shall be authorized to request and
receive information from any other person or agency which is currently or has previously been|
involved in the Proposed Ward’s welfare, including but not limited to caregivers, doctors (past
and present) friends and family.

12. Petitioner requests authorization to use the assistance of the Henderson Police
Department, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, or any other law enforcement agency,
fire department, ambulance service, and/or medical personnel, in securing the Proposed Ward,
and her estate, and removing, or preventing access to same, by persons alleged to be exploiting
the Proposed Ward, is such assistance is necessary.

13. An extension of the Temporary and General Guardianship is sought until such
time as this Court may hold a hearing on the appointment of APRIL L. PARKS as General
Guardian of the Person and Estate of ELIZABETH INDIG. Said extension is required because
the Proposed Ward’s medical condition renders her unable to care for herself medically o
financially, until a General Guardian is appointed.

14. That in the unlikely event the instant Petition be denied, that the Court issue an
Order to Shorten Time allowing the General Guardianship hearing to be held no later than ten
days from the date of this Petition, on the Petition for General Guardianship.

15. For such other further relief as the Court may deem proper and just.

DATED this 12 day of June, 2012.

PALMER LAW GROUP, PLLC

By: /s/ Noel Palmer Simpson

NOEL PALMER SIMPSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9642
2460 Professional Court, Suite #110
Las Vegas, NV 89128

¢ Attorney for Petitioner
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EXHIBIT “1”
ASSETS AND/OR INCOME
ASSETS

The Proposed Ward’s assets are unknown to Petitioner at this time

MONTHLY INCOME

The Proposed Ward’s income is unknown to Petitioner at this time.
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EXHIBIT “2”

NAMES, ADDRESS, AND RELATIVES OF PROPOSED WARD
AND OTHER ENTITLED TO NOTICE

ELIZABETH INDIG

c/o Harmon Medical and Rehabilitation Hospital
2170 E. Harmon Ave.

Las Vegas NV 89119

Proposed Ward

April L. Parks

1022 Boulder Hwy. #101

Boulder City, Nevada 89005

Certified Guardian and Proposed Guardian

ELIZABETH INDIG
43 Pangloss Street

Henderson, Nevada 89002
Daughter of Proposed Ward

There are no other known relatives or persons entitled to Notice under pursuant to NRS 159.047
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VERIFICATION

STATE OF NEVADA )

e
Py
1423

COUNTY OF CLARK )

APRIL L. PARKS, being first duly swarn, under penalty of perjury, deposes and says:

[ am the Petitioner in the above-entitled action; § have read the foregoing PETITION FOR
APPOINTMENT OF GENERAL GUARDIAN OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE; and T know
the comtents thereol; the same 15 true of my own knowledge, except for those matters therein

contained stated upon information and belief, and as to those matters | beliove them fobe true.

/ MM
APRIL L. PARKS

SUBSCRIBED and “3\"3 IRN to before
me this A day of ‘g::‘.,;m.h_w L2012

.y 2
W ﬁ»\R\ U BI dC Inand ior uﬂd
Cotinty and Statg
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RECETVED @6/B6/7@17 1238l 5296268 pagE  @1/01

' T
B1/46/ 268G 28133 TH2LIBTREE FURNDAMENTAL

When recorded mall to:
Elizabath Indig

43 Pongloss St
Hendersan, MY 9002

REVOCATION OF POWER OF
ATTORNEY

Aremialn

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

That 1, Blizabeth Tndig, residing in Hendetson, Nevada do ereby revoke thet any and all
Powers of Attorney exscuted on an unknown date and secorded in Book No. anknown .
fstrumtent Now unknown ot Clark County, Stete of NEVADA by which Glizabeth Indig
appointed Elizabeth Thand Indig Atiormey-in-Fact for purpose in said Power of Attomey set
forth. Said Power of Attorney is hereby revoked, cancelied and annulled.

DATED 3“‘(«:*‘ 1z

SIGNED ééﬁf" 2L ”ﬁ‘g‘f/

QWW

hlmabeth fndig
State of Nevada
County of CLARK
This {nstriment was scknowledged hefore ms by Eh?&b&lh Ind‘mﬂ - s
— e:nmsw% N
R ) N mm
- ng?ff el ) N385 r-abigﬂ;ma
NOTARY PUBEIC, n and Jor said Statc. Myt gt PR 2R
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09/04/2014

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

Hearing for Account and Report (1:30 PM) (Magistrate Norheim, Jon)

09/04/2014, 10/02/2014, 11/06/2014, 12/04/2014

Notice of Hearing of First Annual Accounting and Report of the Guardian

Minutes
09/04/2014 1:30 PM

- HEARING FOR ACCOUNT AND REPORT Also
present: Elizabeth Indig, daughter of the ward; and
Kristina Braverica, family friend of the ward. The
Guardianship Commissioner was sitting under
direction and in lieu of the Guardianship Judge.
Elizabeth Indig (daughter of the ward) asserted her
objection to the accounting, describing her
concerns regarding the expenses listed, the
handling of the ward's home and related expenses,
and the sale of the personal property from the
home. Ms. Indig requested that invoices be
produced. Additionally, Ms. Indig expressed great
concern regarding the management of the
guardianship and issues regarding the ward's trust.
Court noted that it had not been requested that the
Court take jurisdiction over the trust. Court and
participants engaged in discussion regarding the
establishment and history of the guardianship and
several of the issues raised by Ms. Indig; Court
encouraged Ms. Indig to file a Petition to be
appointed guardian and explained the process for
her to seek the appointment. COMMISSIONER
RECOMMENDED, as follows: 1. The Guardian
shall provide a Supplement regarding the trust
assets; 2. The Guardian shall provide the
invoices/receipts as requested to Ms. Indig by
9/12/14; 3. Matter CONTINUED to 10/2/14 at 1:30
p-m. for further review of the Accounting and for
Ms. Indig's Petition to be Appointed Guardian.

10/02/2014 1:30 PM

- HEARING FOR ACCOUNT AND REPORT Also
present: Elizabeth Indig, daughter of the ward;
Kristina Braverica, family friend of the ward; and
Randy Hall, friend of the ward's daughter. The
Guardianship Commissioner was sitting under
direction and in lieu of the Guardianship Judge.
Court and participants engaged in discussion
regarding the care and placement of the ward;

AA 0647
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Elizabeth's concerns regarding potentially seeking
appointment to be General Guardian; possible
resources where Elizabeth may seek free or
discounted legal advice and/or services; Elizabeth's
and Randy's allegations of misappropriation of the
ward's estate and trust funds by the current
guardian; identification of items that Elizabeth and
Randy are specifically concerned about in the
Guardian's Accounting; the history of the case;
service; the ward's Medicaid eligibility; and the
distinction between the ward's estate assets and
trust assets. Upon inquiry from the Court, Court
and participants were able to identify the following
concerns still held by Elizabeth and Randy: A.
Possible inaccuracies in the Accounting; B. If the
ward's personal property was sold at less than fair
market value; C. Guardianship Fees and Attorney
Fees specified in the Accounting. Following further
discussion, Court and participants identified
documents that have already been provided and
documents that shall be produced by each side prior
to the next hearing. Court and participants engaged
in discussion regarding setting the date for the next
hearing. Court advised that another hearing master
could hear the matter if the parties wished to
expedite the case; the parties all agreed that their
preference was to set the case one week further out
and have this Commissioner continue to hear the
matter. COMMISSIONER RECOMMENDED, as
follows: 1. The Guardian shall provide the
following for review: - copies of bank statements -
Medicaid letter - Inventory of the household items
and any sale receipts from the estate sale company -
copies of cancelled checks - copies of cancelled
medical bills - documentation of the health
insurance premium - the attorney's itemized
statement 2. Elizabeth Indig shall file a copy of the
Trust and serve a copy on the Guardian; 3. Matter
CONTINUED to 11/6/14 at 2:30 p.m.

11/06/2014 2:30 PM
- HEARING FOR ACCOUNT AND REPORT
Petitioner, April Parks, was present and represented
by Ethan Kottler, Esq. (Bar #5693). Ward's
daughter, Elizabeth Indig, was present. Ward's
daughter's friends, Randy Hall and Kristina

SUPP 0473
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Braverica, were also present and seated with
Elizabeth Indig. The Guardianship Commissioner
was sitting under direction and in lieu of the
Guardianship Judge. The Court inquired about the
requested documents from the last hearing. Ward's
daughter reported that she submitted the Trust. The
Court confirmed receipt and review of the Trust.
Mr. Kottler informed the Court that the bank will
produce the bank statements tomorrow. Upon Court
inquiry, the parties confirmed that Ms. Simpson
submitted the itemized list. Ms. Parks notified the
Court that she submitted all of the requested
documents to Mr. Drizin's office. Ward's daughter
requested that the Court remove April Parks as the
guardian and impose sanctions. The Court and
Ward's daughter then discussed the possibility of
her becoming the guardian. The Court and parties
also discussed a Medicaid issue and an issue
regarding the residence. COMMISSIONER
RECOMMENDED: 1. Mr. Kottler shall provide the
documents in his possession to Ward's daughter,
Elizabeth Indig, as of Monday, November 10,
2014. Mr. Kottler shall provide the documents not
already in his possession as he receives them. 2.
Ward's daughter, Elizabeth Indig, shall provide a
remedy recommendation regarding the statutory
time violation allegations at the next hearing.

12/04/2014 3:00 PM
HEARING FOR ACCOUNT AND REPORT Also
present: Attorney Ethan Kottler, Bar #5693,
representing April Parks; Kristina Braverica, family
friend of the ward; and Randy Hall, friend of the
ward's daughter. The Guardianship Commissioner
was sitting under direction and in lieu of the
Guardianship Judge. Upon inquiry from the Court,
Attorney Kottler stated that all documents
requested have been produced. Elizabeth Indig
indicated that she believes some documents have
not yet been provided and that she has not had
sufficient time to review what she has been given.
Attorney Kottler described the efforts made by his
office to meet with Ms. Indig to go over the
documents and answer any question she may have.
Upon inquiry from the Court, Ms. Indig explained
her reluctance to meet with Counsel. Attorney

AA 0649
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Kottler requested the Court find Ms. Indig to be a
vexatious litigant, as after several rejected attempts
to meet and confer with her, she responded by
filing a Motion for an Order to Show Cause;
additionally, Attorney Kottler asserted that Ms.
Indig has still not filed an objection to the
Accounting. Court advised Ms. Indig that she is
required to set forth her objections to the
Accounting in writing, file it, and serve it on
Counsel for the Guardian. Court and participants
engaged in further discussion regarding setting the
matter for Calendar Call; disclosure of witnesses
and documents; the deadline for Ms. Indig to file
and serve her Objection to the Accounting; and Ms.
Indig's desire to have the ward returned home.
Court reiterated that if Ms. Indig would like to
appointed guardian of the ward, she must file a
Petition for Appointment. COMMISSIONER
RECOMMENDED, as follows: 1. Elizabeth Indig's
Objection to the Accounting must be filed and
served no later than 1/30/15; 2. Ms. Indig is to meet
with Counsel for the Guardian to determine what
documents Ms. Indig believes have still not been
provided; 3. Matter is SET for CALENDAR CALL
on 2/11/15 at 10:00 a.m. 4. The hearing on Ms.
Indig's Motion for an Order to Show Cause shall be
CONTINUED from 12/17/14 at 9:00 a.m. to
2/11/15 at 10:00 a.m. to be discussed at the same
time as the Calendar Call; the Court shall not rule
on the Motion until the Evidentiary Hearing.
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Electronically Filed

12:00 1 EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 03/13/2017 11:39:39 AM
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA g 4 5& )
3 CLERK OF THE COURT
4
12:00 5 | THE STATE OF NEVADA,
6 Flaintiff,
7 Vs, GJ No. 16AGJ151A-C

DC No. €321808
8 | APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, GARY
NEIL TAYLOR,

Defendants.

I S

12:00 10

11
12
13 Taken at Las Vegas, Nevada
14 Tuesday, December 6, 2016
12:00 15 1:06 p.m.
16
17
18
19 REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
12:00 20
21 VOLUME 1
22
23
24

12:00 25 | Reported by: Danette L. Antonacci, C.C.R. No. 222
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my account and then terminate my guardianship of you?

A. Okay, I see what you're saying. No, that's
not what April Parks did. April Parks fraudulently
billed wards for services rendered and when, the part
about the thefts, the thefts were obtained, related to
filing false documents with the court and false
misrepresentations that enabled Miss Parks to take
aunthority over a ward's assets when she had no right to
do so.

Q. Okay. And again I just want to get a sort
of general overview. Now all these little boxes that
are beneath these pictures, do these represent like we
talked about sort of the discreet schemes as you called
them?

A, Yes.

0. Sc T want to go over some of these. So who
is the first one listed there?

A. Dorothy Trumbich.

Q. In your review of the guardianship records
of Miss Trumbich, as well as the documents from A
Private Professional Guardian's documents that you
seized, what happened with Miss Trumbich? So how did
the guardianship start and what did you discover?

A. In Miss Trumbich's case April Parks filed a

petition for guardianship where she put in the petition

SUPP 0477
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several misrepresentations about Miss Trumbich including
cmitting the fact that she already had in place a power
of attorney who was actively working to put care
measures in place for Miss Trumbich. The fraudulent
misrepresentations caused April Parks to obtain
guardianship over Miss Trumbich. At the time of this
fraudulent guardianship, Dorothy Trumbich had
$167,204.49 in assets which April Parks took control of
and later spent a good majority on fees for herself and
for her attorneys.

Q. Do you recall what the breakdown was of the
amount of money that Miss Parks spent on her fees and

her attorney fees?

A. May I look at my report?

Q. If that would refresh your memory, please
do.

A, Yes.

April Parks paid herself $12,764 in fees
while she paid her attorney $10,589.40. It should be
worth noting that Dorothy Trumbich died three months
after the guardianship started.

Q. I was going to ask you that. So the total
amount of time that the guardianship was active was
approximately three months; is that right?

A, It was approximately three months, vyes.
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Q. You said in that time Miss Parks ran
$12,000 you said in fees for herself?

A, She did.

0. Now of that 167,204.49, where did the rest
of that go? Was there any left after Miss Trumbich's
death cor —-—

A, Yes. So more than $21, 000 was used to pay
her rent at a skilled nursing facility where she was
living. Some of her money went toward paying a hospice
company for daily visits. Additional money was used to
pay for home health care. Additional money was used to
pay for lawn care. Mrs. Trumbich owned her own home.
And then she also spent approximately $600 on these
third party caregiver companies that for approximately
520 an hour provided companionship or other services for
the ward. When the guardianship concluded April Parks
ultimately sent a check for around $50,000 back to
Dorothy's estate cnce 1t went to probate court.

0. Okay. So out of that 167,000 and change

there was about 50,000 left after these three months?

A, Right,
Q. Okay. And again Jjust to get a broad
overview. The next box has the name Baxter Burns. Is

this another one of the wards that Miss Parks' company

had guardianship over?

SUPP 0479
AA 0654




03:22

03:23

03:23

03:23

03:23

03:24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

98

A, Yes.

0. How did that guardianship begin and what
can you tell us about it?

A. Baxter Burns was very similar to Dorothy
Trumbich. When April Parks filed her petition for
guardianship, it contained false representations
including that Mr. Burns did not already have in place a
power of attorney who was actively working to put care
measures in place for him,

0. Do you know whether Miss Parks was aware of
that power of attorney?

A. I have confirmed through the investigation
that April Parks was fully aware of Mr. Burns' power of
attorney.

Q. Is that based on documents that vyou

reviewed from Miss Parks' office?

A, It is. It's also related to records I
cbtained. It's alsc related to interviews that T
conducted.

Q. Okay. I interrupted you. Please continue.

A, Okay. So based upon April Parks' false

representations in her petition for guardianship, the
court granted guardianship for her over Mr. Burns. At
the time she tock over as guardian Mr. Burns had

532,006.72 in assets. Miss Parks seized those assets
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LVMPD - APPG-011855

Jaclyn O'Malley

’:m: barb <barb@barnesmtncsupply.com>
ent: Monday, July 27, 2015 7:24 AM

To: Jaclyn O'Matley

Subject: Fw: Baxter Burns

He loved. He gave.
We believe. We LIVE. John 3:16

Simple really.......

—--- Criginal Message -----

From: mark@abpgnv.com

To: barb@barmmesmincsupply.com

Cc: April Parks

Sent: Wednesday, April 25, 2012 12:05 PM
Subject: Baxter Burns

Hello Barbara,
Regarding the Bank of America account:

The starting balance was $32,006.72
Expenses for Mr. Burns: $27,609.11 (I believe the $17,000.00 you were sighting was the Attorney fees and
Qardianship fees Iisted only. The amount I am giving you is the TOTAL Expenses)
aving the amount of; $4397.61
Income received: $4,132.23
Total amount left: $8529.84, which we sent to your attorney

I hope that clears everything up for you.
Have a nice day.

Mark A. Simmons, NCG, RFA
Qualified Dementia Care Specialist
A Pnivate Professional Guardian
1022 Nevada Highway #110
Boulder City, NV 89005
702-629-6200

Fax: 483-4320

Confidentiality Note: This message is intended for use only by the individual or entity to which it is addressed
and may contain information that is privileged,confidential, and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If
the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or the employec or agent responsible for delivering the
message to the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If
u have received this communication in error, please contact the sender immediately and destroy the material
ts entirety, whether electronic or hard copy. Thank you
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Jacl¥n O'Malley

I N
’:m: barb <barb@barnesmtncsupply.com>
ent; Monday, July 27, 2015 7.22 AM
To: Jaclyn O'Malley
Subject: Fw: Remainder of Baxter Burns Estate

He loved. He gave.
We believe. We LIVE. John 3:16

Simple really.......
————— Original Message -----

From: Aprillparks

To: barb

Sent: Monday, April 23, 2012 2:47 PM
Subject: Re: Remainder of Baxter Burns Estate

Barbara
We have given you everything that we were in possession of, with the exception of the guns.

I was out of town, and since the guns are only accessible by myself and you did not advise me prior to your visit
but instead called the day of your visit I could hardly make myself available to you.

‘)ur accusatory tone is not only unnecessary but unflattering. I don't want any of Mr Burns belonging nor have
ever.

The guns will only be exchanged at a local police station to you. This is how my office handles all gun
transaction as I do not have the ability to insure that the persons receiving weapons are eligiblc to reeeive them

according to Nevada state law.

April L. Parks, NCG

On Apr 23,2012, at 12:42 PM, barb <barb(@barnesmtncsupply.com> wrote:

Dear April,

I have tried to cail on numerous occassions and you have not taken my calls. | was in
town last week and you were out of town??? Anjelica and Mark both tried to help but to
no avail. |did not get the correct keys for the vechicles. | had to call a lock smith to re
ignition the Capric and Truck cost 291.00 for keys.

The court of Nevada stated as of March 14, all the necessary papers, documents and

anything taken from the Ward should be returned to the

Sucessor Trustee. Well, to this date | do not have except titles and house keys, nothing
. that was in the desk of Baxter Burns.

My attorney is going to take time this week to settle all this with you and Noelle. | want
the guns asap. They are to be delivered to my attorney. There is no reason for me to

1 SUPP 0482
AA 0657



LVMPD - APPG-011857

meet you or wait on you to have them for me. They are not yours. You are i think in
contempt right now for holding onto the remainder of Baxter's belongings.

I want the KEYS (all of them), the DEED to the house, insurance policies, social security
stuff, HIS WALLET, and every thing that was taken out of the roll

desk by Angelica and your staff. Witnessed by all the neighbors. There is no need for
you to pocess anything that is Baxter's. He has a Trust and everything is taken care of
in that trust.

I am not sure why | received a check for $8,800. or so when we were expecting
$17,000. according to Court Documents. She will get to the bottom of that as well.

Angelica tried to help and stated that i had everything that was taken out of
the house. Well if that was true | wouldnt be writing you or demanding the
guns keys etc.

[ will be back on May 24-or 25 and | expect everything to be at the attorneys
office.

Barbara Petty

> >
= >
>
>

I will be back on May 24-29th and want the guns
He loved. He gave.

We believe. We LIVE. John 3:16

Simple really.......
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APRIL PARKS DISCOVERY REVIEW

WARDS AFFECTED | AMOUNT TAKEN LISTED | AMOUNT TAKEN AMOUNT TAKEN THAT AMOUNTS TAKEN LISTED IN

BY SCAMS IN JUDGMENT OF DOCUMENTED IN WAS VERIFIED BY DISCOVERY or Parks Ex Parte

(DOUBLE BILLING, CONVICTION OFFICER’S REPORTS DOCUMENTATION IN Motion on Bail 3-8-17 (300+ page

UNNECESSARY DISCOVERY police report attached).

SERVICES, HOUSE

CHECKS, DOUBLE

BILLED COURT

VISITS, SHOPPING,

BANK DEPOSIT,

ESTATE SALE,

OTHER)

Clyde Bowman 3,820.14 3,820.14 3,447.24 3,820.14 listed on officer’s report
p. 1198. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at
3,447.24. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Delmond Foster 5,134.40 2,264.40 2,487.00 2,264.40 listed on officer’s report
p. 1197. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 3955 at
2,487.00. Unable to confirm
shopping trip amounts.

Delores Smith 6,346.30 6,166.30 3118.50 6,166.30 listed on officer’s report
p. 1199. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at 264.00
and 2,854.50 on p. 6749. Unable
to confirm shopping trip and court
visit overbilled amounts.

Harold Lockwood 4,528.00 4,528.00 3,568.50 4,528.00 listed on officer’s report

p. 1200-1201. Overbilled ward
visits documented on p. 6749 at
3,568.50. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.
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James Poya

6,032.50

6,032.50

4,374.30

6,032.50 listed on officer’s report
p. 1196. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 3955 at
4,374.30. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Janice Mitchell

4,766.37

4,766.37

4,013.82

4,766.37 listed on officer’s report
p. 1198. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 4754 at
4,013.82. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Juanita Graham

5,766.75

5,766.75

3,410.88

5,766.75 listed on officer’s report
p. 1199. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at
3,410.88. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Marlene Homer

11,582.40

3,632.70

4,822.80

3,632.70 listed on officer’s report
p. 1200. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
4,822.80. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Mary Vitek

2,705.39

2,705.39

1,460.10

2,705.39 listed on officer’s report
p. 1198. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 4754 at
1,460.10. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Norbert Wilkening

4,533.20

4,533.20

3,289.20

4,533.20 listed on officer’s report
p. 1201. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
3,289.20. Unable to confirm
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shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Dorothy Trumbich

167,204.49

Ward not found on
officer’s report.

167,204.49-
50,000.00=117,204.49

167,204.49-
50,000.00=117,204.49

50,000 was returned.

Adolfo Gonzales

1,413.60

1,413.60

1,353.60

1,413.60 listed on officer’s report
p. 1201. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
1,353.60.

Carolyn
Rickenbaugh

3,804.49

3,804.39

1,580.10

3,804.39 listed on officer’s report
p. 1197. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 3955 at
1,580.10. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Gloria Schneringer

2,830.50

2,830.50

2,830.50

2,830.50 listed on officer’s report
p. 1198. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 4754 at
2,830.50.

Kenneth Edwards

2,622.62

2,622.62

1,308.72

2,622.62 listed on officer’s report
p. 1198. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 4754 at
1,308.72. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Roy Franklin

5,806.97

5,806.97

3,698.04

5,806.97 listed on officer’s report
p. 1199. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at
3,698.04. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Marilyn Scholl

6,262.48

6,262.48

3,786.72

6,262.48 listed on officer’s report
p. 1197-1198. Overbilled ward
visits documented on p. 4754 at
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3,786.72. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Marie Long

10,708.45

3,952.95

4,727.10

3,952.95 listed on officer’s report
p. 1200. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
4,727.10. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Rennie North

2,074.80

1,441.80

1,286.40

1,441.80 listed on officer’s report
p. 1200. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
1,286.40. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Patricia Smoak

5,563.60

5,563.60

4,765.92

5,563.60 listed on officer’s report
p. 1197. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 4754 at
4,765.92. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Rudy North

2,016.30

1,449.30

1,477.80

1,449.30 listed on officer’s report
p. 1200. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
1,477.80. Unable to confirm court
visit overbilled amounts.

Ruth Braslow

13,180.67

13,209.60 on p. 1196

4,854.30

12,879.60 p. 11920 or 13,209.60
on p. 1196 listed on officer’s
reports. Overbilled ward visits
listed on p. 3955 at 4,854.30.
Unable to confirm shopping trip

and court visit overbilled amounts.

Walter Wright

4,183.08

4,183.08

3,659.28

4,183.08 listed on officer’s report
p. 1199. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at
3,659.28. Unable to confirm
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shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

William Brady 9,470.80 3,068.80 5,214.30 3,068.80 listed on officer’s report
p. 1197. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 3955 at
5,214.30. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

William Flewellen 4,807.61 4,807.61 4,807.61 4,807.61 listed on officer’s report
p.11197.

Yoshiko Kindaichi 3,699.28 3,699.28 1,754.28 3,699.28 listed on officer’s report
p. 1199. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 5632 at
1,754.28. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Norman Weinstock | 15,068.18 Ward not found on 15,068.18

officer’s report.
15,068.18

Maria Cooper 6,920.00 Ward not found on 6,920.00

officer’s report.

6,920.00
Kenneth 4,290.00 Ward not found on 4,290.00
Cristopherson officer’s report.

4,290.00

Joseph Massa 5,396.40 Ward not found on 5,396.40

officer’s report.
5,396.40
Blanca Ginorio 2,497.20 Ward not found on Ward had 2,645.00 in bank.

officer’s report.
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Ward had 2,645.00 in
bank.

Daniel Currie 8,149.70 Ward not found on 8,149.70 P. 1161 shows he had an IRA for
officer’s report. 47,000. No other info was found
in documents.
8,149.70
Rita Lamppa 4,311.20 Ward not found on 4,311.20
officer’s report.
4,311.20
Barbara Neely 895.00 895.00 895.00 895.00 listed on officer’s report
Audrey Weber 3,819.60 (200 over what | 3,619.60 3,619.60 3,619.60 listed on officer’s report
officer’s report said) p. 10445. The judgment of
should be 3,619.60 conviction shows 200.00 more
money taken than the officer’s
report.

Baxter Burns 32,006.72 32,006.72 32,006.72 listed on officer’s report
p. 11520. $8,529.84 was
returned.

Linda Phillips 3,445.26 3,445.26 1,833.60 3,445.26 listed on officer’s report
p. 1201. Overbilled ward visits
documented on p. 6749 at
1,833.60. Unable to confirm
shopping trip and court visit
overbilled amounts.

Mary Woods (John 25,278.57 25,278.57 25,278.57

and Sally Denton)

SSA SCAM 1,344.00 1,344.00 1,344.00

BANK DEPOSIT 67,775.70 67,775.70 67,775.70

SCAM

TAYLOR COURT 74,229.90 74,229.90 74,229.90

SCAM
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TAYLOR 1,405.20 1,405.20 1,405.20
MORTUARY/TOILET
PAPER SCAM
HOLIDAY GIFT 1,507.50 1,507.50 1,507.50
SCAM 2013
TOTAL AMOUNT ACTUAL AMOUNT ACTUAL AMOUNT TAKEN
RESTITUTION PER JOC TAKEN DOCUMENTED DOCUMENTED IN
IN OFFICER’S REPORTS | DISCOVERY
$554,397.71 $465,663.00 $436,816.02
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LVMPD - APPG-001196 LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

CONTINUATION
Event #: 150819-2043

This investigation identified that the court was unaware of the double-billing activity in which PARKS and
SIMMONS were engaged. When the court approved each of PARKS petitions for payment or approval of her fees, the
hearing master and presiding judge relied solely on the representations that PARKS made in her petitions. Both the
guardianship judge and the guardianship hearing master sitting in lieu of the judge stated clearly that had they known
PARKS was billing multiple wards for the exact same time and activity they would never have approved the petitions for
fees submitted by PARKS to the court. The Hearing Master stated that he relied solely on the information provided to
the court by PARKS when she requested payment or confirmation of her fees. As such, since PARKS failed to tell the
court that she was billing multiple wards for the same time and activity, the court was unaware that when PARKS
represented in her petitions that she or her staff spent time for the benefit of one specific ward, in actual fact, the ward
received benefit of only a portion of the time claimed.

PARKS, as the court appointed guardian for the 25 wards documented in this report, all of whom were
vulnerable and/or elderly persons who lacked the capacity to manage their own affairs or monitor and/or approve of
PARKS activities and billing, exploited her position as guardian and converted funds belonging to each ward for her own
benefit through the use of a false billing scheme; namely by double-billing these wards for activities that were billed to
multiple wards at the same time. This exploitation constitutes a violation of NRS 200.5099 (3) (b), a Category B felony.

SIMMONS, as the manager of APPG, exercised direction, authority and control over the employees of APPG and,
along with PAKS, directed that those employees double-bill their activities for each ward, knowing that this documented
activity would be used to justify and hide the exploitation of PARKS wards.

In addition to exploiting her wards, PARKS and SIMMONS embezzled funds that had been entrusted to PARKS to
pay for the needs of the wards by knowingly and without lawful authority, converting ward funds to herself fees that
were not earned, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b), a category B or C felony.

PARKS transferred the funds for these double-billed activities from each individual wards bank account to her
business account, held in the name of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC. From this account, PARKS utilized the funds
she misappropriated to pay business expenses, salaries for her staff, and to enrich herself and her family members,
several of whom were employed in her business.

1. Between 10/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over James Poya, an elderly person
born 06/25/1948, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,032.50, belonging to Poya with the intention of
permanently depriving Poya of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099
(3) (b) a category B felony.

2. Between 10/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over James Poya, an elderly person
born 06/25/1948, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $6,032.50
belonging to Poya and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Poya, contrary
to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

3. Between 04/16/2013 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Ruth Braslow, an elderly
person born 07/10/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $13,209.60%!, belonging to Braslow with the
intention of permanently depriving Braslow of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (c) a category B felony.

4. Between 04/16/2013 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Ruth Braslow, an elderly
person born 07/10/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$13,209.60 belonging to Braslow and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Braslow, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

21 This figure includes all the fraudulent fees documented in the accompanying Braslow report. SUPP 0491
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APPG-001197 LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
CONTINUATION
Event #: 150819-2043

Between 11/03/2014 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Carolyn Rickenbaugh, an
elderly person born 12/28/1942, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,804.39, belonging to
Rickenbaugh with the intention of permanently depriving Rickenbaugh of the ownership, use, benefit or
possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 11/03/2014 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Carolyn Rickenbaugh, an
elderly person born 12/28/1942, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$3,804.39, belonging to Rickenbaugh and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit
of Rickenbaugh, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Delmond Foster, an elderly
person born 08/11/1930, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,264.40%%, belonging to Foster with the
intention of permanently depriving Foster of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Delmond Foster, an elderly
person born 08/11/1930, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$2,264.40, belonging to Foster and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Foster, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 04/02/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over William Brady, an elderly
person born 08/16/1928, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,068.80%, belonging to Brady with the
intention of permanently depriving Brady of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (c) a category B felony.

Between 04/02/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over William Brady, an elderly
person born 08/16/1928, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$3,068.80, belonging to Brady and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Brady, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Patricia Smoak, an elderly
person born 01/29/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,563.60, belonging to Smoak with the
intention of permanently depriving Smoak of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (c) a category B felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Patricia Smoak, an elderly
person born 01/29/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$5,563.60, belonging to Smoak and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Smoak, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 10/24/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marilyn Scholl, an elderly
person born 12/15/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,262.48, belonging to Scholl with the
intention of permanently depriving Scholl of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 10/24/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marilyn Scholl, an elderly
person born 12/15/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted

22 This figure includes $1,260.00 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) +
shopping, court and banking

23 This figure includes $2,506.10 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) +
shopping, court and banking SUPP 0492
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CONTINUATION
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$6,262.48, belonging to Scholl and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Scholl, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 01/05/2015 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Kenneth Edwards, an elderly
person born 12/04/1944, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,622.62, belonging to Edwards with the
intention of permanently depriving Edwards of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 01/05/2015 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Kenneth Edwards, an elderly
person born 12/04/1944, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$2,622.62, belonging to Edwards and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Edwards, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 09/05/2013 and 09/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Gloria Schneringer, an elderly
person born 08/18/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,830.50, belonging to Schneringer with
the intention of permanently depriving Schneringer of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds
contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 09/05/2013 and 09/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Gloria Schneringer, an elderly
person born 08/18/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$2,830.50, belonging to Schneringer and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit
of Schneringer, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Janice Mitchell, an elderly
person born 12/08/1937, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,766.37, belonging to Mitchell with the
intention of permanently depriving Mitchell of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Janice Mitchell, an elderly
person born 12/08/1937, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$4,766.37, belonging to Mitchell and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Mitchell, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 12/3/2013 and 12/08/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Mary Vitek, an elderly person
born 01/21/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,705.39, belonging to Vitek with the intention of
permanently depriving Vitek of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099
(3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 12/3/2013 and 12/08/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Mary Vitek, an elderly person
born 01/21/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $2,705.39,
belonging to Vitek and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Vitek, contrary
to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 07/05/2013 and 02/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Clyde Bowman, an elderly
person born 11/08/1921, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,820.14, belonging to Bowman with the
intention of permanently depriving Bowman of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 07/05/2013 and 02/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Clyde Bowman, an elderly
person born 11/08/1921, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$3,820.14, belonging to Bowman and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Bowman, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. gypp 0493
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Between 07/05/2013 and 07/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Roy Franklin, an elderly person
born 06/27/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,806.97, belonging to Franklin with the intention
of permanently depriving Franklin of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS
200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 07/05/2013 and 07/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Roy Franklin, an elderly person
born 06/27/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $5,806.97,
belonging to Franklin and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Franklin,
contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 12/03/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Juanita Graham, an elderly
person born 06/09/1929, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,766.75, belonging to Graham with the
intention of permanently depriving Graham of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 12/03/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Juanita Graham, an elderly
person born 06/09/1929, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$5,766.75, belonging to Graham and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Graham, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 07/03/2014 and 05/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Yoshiko Kindaichi, an elderly
person born 01/03/1935, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,699.28, belonging to Kindaichi with the
intention of permanently depriving Kindaichi of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 07/03/2014 and 05/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Yoshiko Kindaichi, an elderly
person born 01/03/1935, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$3,699.28, belonging to Kindaichi and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Kindaichi, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 07/04/2013 and 06/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Walter Wright, an elderly
person born 10/30/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,183.08, belonging to Wright with the
intention of permanently depriving Wright of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 07/04/2013 and 06/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Walter Wright, an elderly
person born 10/30/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$4,183.08, belonging to Wright and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Wright, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 03/05/2014 and 06/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Dolores Smith, an elderly
person born 11/30/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,166.30, belonging to Smith with the
intention of permanently depriving Smith of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 03/05/2014 and 06/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Dolores Smith, an elderly
person born 11/30/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$6,166.30, belonging to Smith and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Smith, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.
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35. Between 08/03/2012 and 12/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marlene Homer, an elderly
person born 06/06/1939, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,632.70%, belonging to Homer with the
intention of permanently depriving Homer of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to
NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

36. Between 08/03/2012 and 12/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marlene Homer, an elderly
person born 06/06/1939, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$3,632.70, belonging to Homer and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Homer, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

37. Between 08/03/2012 and 03/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marie Long, an elderly person
born 08/17/1919, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,952.95%, belonging to Long with the intention
of permanently depriving Long of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS
200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

38. Between 08/03/2012 and 03/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marie Long, an elderly person
born 08/17/1919, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $3,952.95,
belonging to Long and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Long, contrary
to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

39. Between 09/19/2013 and 07/03/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rudy North, an elderly person
born 07/29/1936, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,449.30%, belonging to Rudy North with the
intention of permanently depriving Rudy North of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds
contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

40. Between 09/19/2013 and 07/03/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rudy North, an elderly person
born 07/29/1936, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $1,449.30%,
belonging to Rudy North and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Rudy
North, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

41. Between 10/04/2013 and 05/05/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rennie North, an elderly
person born 12/03/1938, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,441.80%, belonging to Rennie North with
the intention of permanently depriving Rennie North of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds
contrary to NRS 200.5099(3) (b) a category B felony.

42. Between 10/04/2013 and 05/05/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rennie North, an elderly
person born 12/03/1938, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$1,441.80%°, belonging to Rennie North and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the
benefit of Rennie North, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

43. Between 09/03/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Harold Lockwood, an elderly
person born 10/07/1927, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,528.00, belonging to Lockwood with the

24 This figure includes $2,556.30 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) +
shopping, court and banking

25 This figure includes $2,406.60 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) +
shopping, court and banking

26 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid

27 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid

28 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid

29 parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid
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intention of permanently depriving Lockwood of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds
contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 09/03/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Harold Lockwood, an elderly
person born 10/07/1927, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$4,528.00, belonging to Lockwood and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Lockwood, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 05/24/2013 and 01/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Norbert Wilkening, an elderly
person born 01/09/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,533.20, belonging to Wilkening with the
intention of permanently depriving Wilkening of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 05/24/2013 and 01/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Norbert Wilkening, an elderly
person born 01/09/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$4,533.20, belonging to Wilkening and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Wilkening, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony.

Between 06/05/2013 and 11/04/2013, through the use of her guardianship over Adolfo Gonzalez, an elderly
person born 03/09/1941, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,413.60, belonging to Gonzalez with the
intention of permanently depriving Gonzalez of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary
to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 06/05/2013 and 11/04/2013, through the use of her guardianship over Adolfo Gonzalez, an elderly
person born 03/09/1941, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted
$1,413.60, belonging to Gonzalez and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of
Gonzalez, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

Between 08/06/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Linda Phillips, a vulnerable
person, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,445.26, belonging to Phillips with the intention of
permanently depriving Phillips of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS
200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony.

Between 08/06/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Linda Phillips, a vulnerable
person, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $3,445.26, belonging to
Phillips and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Phillips, contrary to NRS
205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony.

In addition to using this scheme to exploit her wards, PARKS also filed 65 Annual Accountings and Petitions for

Fees with the District Court between 07/22/2013 and 05/03/2016, each of which contained false representations;
namely that the service hours PARKS claimed to have spent on each ward for ward visits, shopping and court visits were
dedicated entirely to each ward, when in fact, the time was actually split between multiple wards at the same time, with
each ward receiving benefit of only a portion of the time taken for the activity. The court, unaware that PARKS was
misrepresenting the actual time she dedicated to each ward approved her petitions believing that her claims for fees
were true. Each of these filing constitutes a violation of NRS 239.330 Offering false instrument for filing or record.

In addition, 57 of these petitions were filed along with a notarized declaration made by PARKS that she attested

to the validity of the content of each petition under penalty of perjury. The purpose of each of these petitions was to
obtain court approval either to pay herself fees that PARKS claimed were due, or to obtain court approval of fees that
PARKS had already paid to herself. Making false and misleading statements in the petitions and accompanying exhibits
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as to the amount of those fees and the time taken to provide each service is material to the issue in question with each
petition. As such, PARKS violated NRS 199.145, a category D felony.
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On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony.

That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of
James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of

perjury.

On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state,
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements
about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for those services.

On 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony.

That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in
the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of
James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of
perjury.

On 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state,
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false
statements about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for those services.

On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony.

That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in
the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting on 03/25/2016, in the
guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Rtjypte Rrgfessional
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Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made
under penalty of perjury.

On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state,
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for
those services.

On 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks made a willful and false
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony.

That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth
Braslow G-13-038228-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records
of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use
that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury.

On 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state,
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements
about the duration of services provided to Braslow and the value of the fees owed for those services.

On 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks made a willful and false
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony.

That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in
the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of
Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of
perjury.

On 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state,
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false
statements about the duration of services provided to Braslow and the value of the fees owed for those
services.
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Spencer Luxury Care

Ward Visits

Name Billed Person Time Billed Person Cost  Actual Person Time  Actual Person Cost  Fraud Loss per person
Clyde Bowman 35.5 $4,260.00 6.773 $812.76 $3,447.24
Roy Franklin 38 $4,560.00 7.183 $861.96 $3,698.04
Juanita Graham 35.58 $4,269.60 7.156 $858.72 $3,410.88
Yoshiko Kindaichi 18 $2,160.00 3.381 $405.72 $1,754.28
Martha Ornelas 32.25 $3,870.00 5.986 $718.32 $3,151.68
Walter Wright 37.58 $4,509.60 7.086 $850.32 $3,659.28
Robert Smith 6 $720.00 0.978 $117.36 $602.64
Linda Fisher 5 $600.00 1.01 $121.20 $478.80
Edward Atherton 8.58 $1,029.60 2.03 $243.60 $786.00
Charles Maddera 8.75 $1,050.00 211 $253.20 $796.80
Rex Lyons 6.83 $819.60 1.8 $216.00 $603.60
Dolores Smith 2,75 $330.00 0.55 $66.00 $264.00
Larry Coble 15.25% $1,830.00 2951 $354.12 $1,475.88
Total daily time 250.07 $30,008.40 48.994 $5,879.28 $24,129.12
Billed daily cost $30,008.40

Actual time 51.33

Actual cost $6,159.60

Total Fraud Loss $23,848.80

Time/ward

Colin Haynes 6160
AA olglzaﬂicial Intelligence Analyst
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Ward Visits

Joyful Senior Care

Name Actual Person Cost  Fraud Loss per person
James Poya $1,715.70 $4,374.30
Ruth Braslow $1,805.70 $4,854.30
Carolyn Rickenbaugh $589.50 $1,580.10
Delmond Foster $873.00 $2,487.00
William Brady $1,805.70 $5,214.30
Total daily time $6,789.60 $18,510.00

Billed daily cost
Actual time
Actual cost
Total Fraud Loss
Time/ward
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Spencer Luxury Care

Ward Visits

Name Billed Person Time Billed Person Cost  Actual Person Time  Actual Person Cost  Fraud Loss per person
Clyde Bowman 35.5 $4,260.00 6.773 $812.76 $3,447.24
Roy Franklin 38 $4,560.00 7.183 $861.96 $3,698.04
Juanita Graham 35.58 $4,269.60 7.156 $858.72 $3,410.88
Yoshiko Kindaichi 18 $2,160.00 3.381 $405.72 $1,754.28
Martha Ornelas 32.25 $3,870.00 5.986 $718.32 $3,151.68
Walter Wright 37.58 $4,509.60 7.086 $850.32 $3,659.28
Robert Smith 6 $720.00 0.978 $117.36 $602.64
Linda Fisher 5 $600.00 1.01 $121.20 $478.80
Edward Atherton 8.58 $1,029.60 2.03 $243.60 $786.00
Charles Maddera 8.75 $1,050.00 211 $253.20 $796.80
Rex Lyons 6.83 $819.60 1.8 $216.00 $603.60
Dolores Smith 2,75 $330.00 0.55 $66.00 $264.00
Larry Coble 15.25% $1,830.00 2951 $354.12 $1,475.88
Total daily time 250.07 $30,008.40 48.994 $5,879.28 $24,129.12
Billed daily cost $30,008.40

Actual time 51.33

Actual cost $6,159.60

Total Fraud Loss $23,848.80

Time/ward

Colin Haynes 6160
AA olglzegcial Intelligence Analyst
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Ward Visits

Lakeview Terrace

Name Fraud Loss per person
Marlene Homer 54,822.80
Marie Long $4,727.10
Rudy North $1,477.80
Rennie North $1,286.40
Frank Papapietro $1,092.30
Harold Lockwood $3,568.50
Norbert Wilkening $3,289.20
Adoifo Gonzalez $1,353.60
Delores Smith $2,854.50
Linda Phillips $1,833.60
Barbara Neely $597.00
Total daily time $24,472.20

Billed daily cost
Actual time
Actual cost
Total Fraud Loss
Time/ward
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Joyful Senior Care Haven Il

Ward Visits

Name Billed Person Time Billed Person Cost  Actual Person Time  Actual Person Cost  Fraud Loss per person
Cecilia Cass 28.42 $3,410.40 5.464 $655.68 $2,754.72
Kenneth Edwards 13.75 $1,650.00 2.844 $341.28 $1,308.72
Janice Mitchell 44.67 $5,360.40 11.2215 51,346.58 $4,013.82
Gloria Schneringer 34 $4,080.00 10.4125 $1,249.50 $2,830.50
Marilyn Scholl 37.67 $4,520.40 6.114 $733.68 $3,786.72
Patricia Smoak 54.75 $6,570.00 15.034 $1,804.08 $4,765.92
Mary Vitek 15.25 $1,830.00 3.0825 $369.90 $1,460.10
Roy Cass 4.25 $510.00 0.59 $70.80 $439.20
Total daily time 232.76 $27,931.20 54.7625 $6,571.50 $21,359.70
Billed daily cost $27,931.20

Actual time 55.92

Actual cost $6,710.40

Total Fraud Lass $21,220.80

Time/ward

AA Q

Colin Haynes 6160
678 e
inancial Intelligence Analyst
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Spencer Luxury Care

Ward Visits

Name Billed Person Time Billed Person Cost  Actual Person Time  Actual Person Cost  Fraud Loss per person
Clyde Bowman 35.5 $4,260.00 6.773 $812.76 $3,447.24
Roy Franklin 38 $4,560.00 7.183 $861.96 $3,698.04
Juanita Graham 35.58 $4,269.60 7.156 $858.72 $3,410.88
Yoshiko Kindaichi 18 $2,160.00 3.381 $405.72 $1,754.28
Martha Ornelas 32.25 $3,870.00 5.986 $718.32 $3,151.68
Walter Wright 37.58 $4,509.60 7.086 $850.32 $3,659.28
Robert Smith 6 $720.00 0.978 $117.36 $602.64
Linda Fisher 5 $600.00 1.01 $121.20 $478.80
Edward Atherton 8.58 $1,029.60 2.03 $243.60 $786.00
Charles Maddera 8.75 $1,050.00 211 $253.20 $796.80
Rex Lyons 6.83 $819.60 1.8 $216.00 $603.60
Dolores Smith 2,75 $330.00 0.55 $66.00 $264.00
Larry Coble 15.25% $1,830.00 2951 $354.12 $1,475.88
Total daily time 250.07 $30,008.40 48.994 $5,879.28 $24,129.12
Billed daily cost $30,008.40

Actual time 51.33

Actual cost $6,159.60

Total Fraud Loss $23,848.80

Time/ward

Colin Haynes 6160
AA olglzagcial Intelligence Analyst
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OFFICER’S REPORT
Event#  150819-2043

Theft & Filing False Document — Audrey Weber Guardianship

SUBJECT
DIVISION DIVISION OF
REPORTING: HSD OCCURRENCE: HSD
DATE & TIME LOCATION OF o o
OCCURRED: D2/0712012 OCCURRENCE: Within Jurisdiction of Clark County, NV
VICTIM: Audrey Joan WEBER
DOB
L 62
Home Address Harmon Medical & Rehabilitation Hospital
2710 E. Harmon Ave
Las Vegas, NV 89119
SYNOPSIS:

On February 7, 2012, April Parks (PARKS) filed or caused to be filed with the Clark County District Court a Petition
for Appointment of Guardian. The subject of this petition was Audrey Weber (WEBER]), an elderly female born-
1926. On March 7, 2012, PARKS was appointed as the guardian of WEBER.

PARKS and her employee Mark Simmons (SIMMONS) violated MRS 239.330 Offering false instrument for filing
or record, a category C felony, in that on June 18, 2013, PARKS filed a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve
Final Accounting with the District Court that contained false statements made by SIMMONS and that PARKS knew to be
false, including:

¢ PARKS and SIMMONS claimed to have performed over 62 hours of guardianship services for WEBER;
¢ PARKS and SIMMONS claimed to have earned fees in the amount of $7,543.80 performing the function as
guardian of WEBER

PARKS also violated NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony, in that she converted
property belonging to the estate of Audrey WEBER, namely $3,619.60, with the intent to deprive the estate of Audrey
WEBER of said property.

Seized from PARKS storage facility during the service of search warrants as part of this investigation was a file
folder containing documents pertaining to WEBER. These documents included:

o Two Invoices documenting the activities performed by PARKS and her staff for WEBER between March 1,
2012, and April 28, 2012. These Invoices showed that PARKS’ staff worked 16.34 for which PARKS charged

Date and Time of Reporl: 10/12/2016 08.00 Officer: Jaclyn O'Malley PH#: 089
Approved By: Officer: Colin Haynes P#: 6160
SIGNATURE:
SUPP 0505
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Law Offices of Anthony M. Goldstein

Ms. April Parks (NDOC #121045)

Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center

4370 Smiley Road

Las Vegas, Nevada 89115-1808 Sent Via First Class Mail

Dear April:

| received your letter, which was postmarked on January 24, 2019. In the letter,
you asked about filing a motion to modify the sentence that Judge Jones imposed. In
this letter, I'd like to clarify what we talked about when | visited you after the sentencing
hearing.

During that visit, | told you that in my opinion, the only potentially legitimate
option so far as trying to obtain relief from your sentence is via a Petition for Writ of
Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction). | enclosed a copy of NRS 34.720-730 for your
reference. These sections address the timelines and procedures for filing this type of
petition.

So far as counsel for the petition, you would have to file a motion with the Court
to request post-conviction counsel. In that petition, you would assert any matters
whatsoever, including any issues at the actual sentencing hearing and also any gripes
that you may have about my representation of you throughout the case. From day 1 and
up to and including when | visited you after sentencing, you expressed your satisfaction
with my efforts. However, as | told you during said visit, though | believe that | did
effective work as your attorney, defendants commonly typically include a claim of
ineffective assistance of counsel against their attorney.

Please review the enclosed statutes and then feel free to write with any

additional questions.

Very truly yours,
c%/ﬁ(«/gy (/?/f(/§(//(/)/(’l/1
Anthony M. Goldstein, Esq.

2421 Tech Center Court Phone: (702) 796-1114
Suite 100 Fax: (702) 796-1115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89128
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State v. Parks A¥nthem
June 8, 2018 .‘ -

AP0 ou b
Please note that the retainer—batemrce—will be estimated periodically and will take into
consideration both billed and unbilled fees. i ] iliingtrthis
Arth Hrefurd-thediff T .

.
’
CL VLR o, - a1 puf o e

Anthern’s fees for this work wiil be at its regular hourly rates for the individuals involved, plus
out-of-pocket expenses. Should this engagement continue beyond six {6) months or the end of
the calendar year, there may be an increase in rates as a result of Anthem's review of its hourly
rates. Currently, Anthem’s regular hourly rates are categorized as follows:

Joseph L. Leauanae 5330
}fr?) lennifer A. Allen $220
ﬁ"&{% Professional Staff 565 —-5130
d éobg Both Oggand Anthem acknowledge that the payment of Antherm’s fees will not be contingent
upon the results of Anthem’s analyses. Fees for services will be applied to the retainer balance
as work progresses and expenses are incurred, As indicated earlier, Anthem understands that
OAC will be responsible for all costs associated with Anthem'’s analyses.
AP o A

if the retairrerbahmce decre&&gwﬁ%and we cannot reasonably reach an agreement as to

the replenishgg%&iﬁg@m&h@e, Anthem, at its sole discretion, may either stop ail work
v until th ¢ 15 replenished and any outstanding invoices have been brought current,

T e tatdierbalane
&:@ﬂ’f;ﬁ‘_ﬁ?\?&hdraw fram this engagement. OAC’acknowledges and agrees that Anthem is not required
d/[_}j to continue working in the event of OAC’s failure to pay on a reasonably timely basis for services
rendered as required by this agreement. OAC further acknowledges and agrees that in the event
Anthemn stops working or withdraws from this engagement as a result of OAC’s failure to pay on
a reasonably timely basis, Anthem shali not be liabie to any party for any damages that may$ccur
as a result of Anthem'’s cessation of services. boértf;’p
B
in recognition of the relative risks and benefits of this agreement to both OAC-/and Anthem, we
have discussed and agreed upon the fair allocation of risk between us. As such, OAC agrees, to
the fuilest extent permitted by law, to limit Anthem’s liability to OAC for any and all claims, losses,
costs, and damages of any nature whatsoever, such that Anthern’s total aggregate liability shall
not exceed Anthem’s total fees for services rendered under this agreement. OAC intends and
agrees that this [fmitation apply to any and zl! liability or cause of action against Anthem, however

alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited by law.
it is understood between the parties to this agreement that Anthem may terminate this

engagement for good cause. By countersigning this letter at the spaces indicated below, OAC
agrees to be bound by the terms of this letter.

| Page
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State v. Parks A ntheni
June 8, 2018 AR e

We appreciate this opportunity to be of service. If OAC agrees with the foregoing terms, please
sign this letter where indicated and return it to Anthem.

Sincerely,

1
Joseph L. Leauanae, CPA, CITP, CFF, CFE, ABV, ASA
Anthemn Forensics LLC

Accepted:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Clark County’'s Office of Appointed Counsel.

W///‘Z{t*

Signature ~ Clark County’s Office of Appointed Counsel

Drgcen RO rressdosso

Printed Name

Z//? 7

Date

4iPage
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Output

Sentence Min (Months)

Mean 55.06452
Standard Error 8.282503
Median 48
Mode 24
Standard Deviation 46.11503
Sample Variance 2126.596
Kurtosis 8.270588
Skewness 2.551144
Range 228
Minimum 12
Maximum 240
Sum 1707
Count 31
Confidence Level(95.0%) 16.91513
Sentence Min (Months)

Mean 55.06452
Standard Error 8.282503
Median 48
Mode 24
Standard Deviation 46.11503
Sample Variance 2126.596
Kurtosis 8.270588
Skewness 2.551144
Range 228
Minimum 12
Maximum 240
Sum 1707
Count 31
Confidence Level(95.0%) 16.91513

AA 0694

SUPP 0519



Sentence Min (Months)

Mean

Standard Error
Median

Mode

Standard Deviation
Sample Variance
Kurtosis
Skewness

Range
Minimum
Maximum

Sum

Count

Confidence Level(95.0%)

55.06452
8.282503
48

24
46.11503
2126.596
8.270588
2.551144
228

12

240

1707

31
16.91513

SUMMARY
OUTPUT
Regression Statistics
Multiple R 0.371570777
R Square 0.138064842
Adjusted R Square 0.10834294
Standard Error 43.54531052
Observations 31
ANOVA
df SS MS F
Regression 1 8808.242992 8808.242992 4.645222311
Residual 29 54989.62798 1896.194068
Total 30 63797.87097
Coefficients Standard Error t Stat P-value
Intercept 45.10124658 9.084998244 496436492 2.80075E-05
Amount Stolen 3.90E-06 1.81021E-06 2.155277781 0.039576138
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Electronically Filed
12/31/2020 12:15 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

ANS
AARON D. FORD
Attorney General
MICHAEL J. BONGARD (Bar No. 007997)
Senior Deputy Attorney General
State of Nevada
Office of the Attorney General
1539 Avenue F, Suite 2
Ely, NV 89301
(775)289-1632 (phone)
(775)289-1653 (fax)
MBongard@ag.nv.gov
Attorneys for Respondents

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY NEVADA
APRIL PARKS, ) Case No.: A-19-807564-W
) Department X
Petitioner, )
)
VS. ) (Criminal Case No. C-17-321808-1)
)
DWIGHT NEVEN, WARDEN, AND, THE )
STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Respondents. )

ANSWER TO POST-CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS

Respondents, by and through counsel, Aaron D. Ford, Attorney General of The State of Nevada,
and Michael J. Bongard, Senior Deputy Attorney General, hereby submit their answer to Petitioner
April Parks’ (Parks) Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-conviction). Respondents base this

answer upon the pleadings, the legal authorities, and the pleadings on file in this case and the criminal

casc.

PROCEDUAL HISTORY

L. Trial Court Proceedings, Eighth Judicial District Court

In March of 2017, a Clark County grand jury returned an indictment against Parks for 270

counts including racketeering, theft (Category ‘B’ and ‘C’ felonies), offering false instrument for filing

or record, and perjury. Exhibit #1.!

I Exhibits 1 and 2 are attached to this answer.
1
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Pursuant to a guilty plea agreement filed in November of 2018, Parks entered an Alford * plea to
2 counts of exploitation of an older/vulnerable person, 2 counts of theft, and 1 count of perjury in this
case, with the sentence to run concurrent to the sentence in C329886. App 1.°> Parks rejected a
stipulated sentence of 8-20 years, leaving the parties free to argue for any lawful sentence. /d. at 2.

The parties submitted sentencing memorandums prior to the January 4 sentencing hearing. /d. at
33 and 55. The Court imposed an aggregated sentence of 16-40 years in this case and a concurrent 6 to
15-year sentence in C329886. Id. at 82. The Court ordered restitution of $559,205.32, reduced to
$554,397.71 in the amended judgment of conviction filed on February 4, 2019. Exhibit #2.
I1. Appellate Proceedings

Parks did not file a notice of appeal. However, in Ground Three of the supplemental petition,
Parks alleges that trial counsel failed to file a notice of appeal.
III.  State Habeas Corpus Proceedings, Eighth Judicial District Court

Through counsel, Parks filed her original state habeas corpus petition on December 27, 2019.

On September 30, 2020, Parks filed her supplemental state habeas corpus petition (SPWHC). In
that pleading, Parks raises the following claims (all claims previously raised in the original petition):

e Ground One: Trial counsel advised Parks to reject a more favorable plea deal and Parks
subsequently received a much harsher sentence;

e Ground Two: Parks’ trial counsel was ineffective when trial counsel failed to challenge
errors during sentencing and/or was otherwise ineffective in conjunction with the
sentence proceeding;

e Ground Three: Parks was deprived of her right to a direct appeal.

SPWHC.
The matter is currently set for a hearing before the Court on February 8, 2021. Based upon the
arguments and law presented in this answer, Parks’ claims are either meritless or procedurally

defaulted.

11/

2 North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970).
3 Exhibits in Petitioner’s appendix are referenced by their Bates stamp page at the bottom right.
(APP__ ).
2
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ARGUMENT AND LAW

I Applicable Law
Nevada law governs state habeas corpus proceedings. McConnell v. State, 212 P.3d 307, 309

(Nev. 2009).

By statute, habeas corpus proceedings permit a person to challenge that his conviction or
sentence violate the Constitution of the United States or the Constitution or laws of Nevada. NRS
34.724(1). To the extent they do not conflict with habeas corpus statutes, the Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure apply to habeas corpus proceedings. NRS 34.780. Appointment of counsel in habeas corpus
proceedings lies with the discretion of the court. NRS 34.750. A court determines the propriety and
necessity of discovery or an evidentiary hearing. NRS 34.770.

A court may dismiss a petition if the petition is untimely, contains claims that could have been
litigated in previous proceedings, or if the petitioner unduly delays in filing a petition. NRS 34.800,

NRS 34.810, NRS 34.726.

I1I. Parks’ First Claim

A. Parks’ First Claim

Parks alleges ineffective assistance of trial counsel because counsel advised her to reject a more
favorable plea deal. SPWHC at 5. Parks rejected a stipulated sentence in the plea agreement and
subsequently received a longer prison sentence after both sides were free to argue for a lawful sentence.

B. The Relevant Law

In 2012, the United States Supreme Court decided Lafler v. Cooper, 566 U.S. 156 (2012) and
Missouri v. Frye, 566 U.S. 134 (2012).

In Frye, the Court held “that, as a general rule, defense counsel has the duty to communicate
formal offers from the prosecution to accept a plea on terms and conditions that may be favorable to the
accused.” 566 U.S. at 145. Allowing an offer to expire “without advising the defendant or allowing him
to consider it,” constituted deficient conduct on the part of defense counsel. Frye, 566 U.S. at 145.

In Lafler v. Cooper, the Court held that trial counsel’s advice, to reject a plea offer amounted to
ineffective assistance. 566 U.S. at 163. The Court found deficient the advice consisted of the attorney

advising the rejection of a plea offer which included a charge of assault with intent to murder, advising

3
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Cooper of the fact that “the prosecution would be unable to establish intent to murder [the victim]
because she had been shot below the waist.” Id. at 161. The Sixth Circuit found that counsel’s
performance was deficient because counsel advised Cooper of “an incorrect legal rule.” Id. at 162
(citation to appellate decision omitted).

Prior to the holdings in Lafler and Frye, the Unite States Supreme Court held that the two-part
test in Strickland v. Washington* applies to plea bargaining. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 58 (1985).
The Court found the deficient conduct prong remains unchanged. /d. at 58-59. A petitioner
demonstrates prejudice by showing that “counsel’s constitutionally ineffective performance affected the
outcome of the plea process.” Id. at 59. In Lafler, the Court found that in the case of a rejected offer, the
petitioner must show the offer would have been accepted by petitioner and the court, and the results
(convictions or sentence) would have been “less severe” than the results imposed by the judgment and
sentence. 566 U.S. at 164.

The ultimate decision to accept or reject an offer remains with the defendant. See, Wainwright v.

Sykes, 433 U.S. 72,93 n.1 (1977) (Burger, C.J., concurring).

C. Parks’ Ground One Claim Fails to Allege Deficient Conduct on the Part of Trial
Counsel

1.) The facts

The plea agreement in this case required a concurrent sentence between this case (C321808) and
the sentence in C329886. The plea agreement also contained the statement “I reject a stipulated
aggregate sentence of eight (8) to twenty (20) years concurrent to each other in this case and Case No.
(329886, and understand the State may argue for more than the stipulated sentence.” Plea Agreement
(filed November 5, 2018).

During the plea canvass, the Court specifically asked Parks if she rejected the stipulated
sentence of eight to twenty years. APP 17-18. Parks stated that she did. Id. The Court also made sure
Parks understood the fact that sentencing, including whether individual counts ran consecutive or
concurrent to each other, was in the discretion of the Court. Id. at 22. The Court also ensured that Parks

understood that “no one can promise you probation, leniency or any special treatment.” /d.

4466 U.S. 668 (1984).
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Parks never advised the court during the plea canvass or in the plea agreement that the rejection
of the stipulated sentence was based solely on the advice of counsel. To the contrary, both the canvass
and plea agreement reflect that the rejection of the stipulated sentence was Parks’ decision.

The sentencing memorandum provides the reasons why Parks rejected the stipulated sentence—
Parks thought an 8-20 year sentence too harsh. APP 55. That pleading argues that given; 1.) Parks and
her co-defendants committed no physical abuse, or negligent treatment (id. at 57-58), 2.) Parks was
never sanctioned by any court for perjury or perpetrating fraud in court fillings (id. at 63), 3.) Parks’ co-
defendant conducted most of the billing of wards (id. at 65-67), 4.) Parks herself protected wards from
exploitation (id. at 67-68), and 5.) Prior to her arrest in this case, Parks had never been jailed or
imprisoned, and disputes whether she (as opposed to co-defendants) committed all the crimes alleged in
the indictment. /d. at 74. Parks’ memorandum concluded the recommendation in the Pre-Sentence
Investigation report (PSI) of 64-226 months (and the almost certainly higher request from the State)
“wrongfully punishes Parks for the actions of others.” /d. at 73.

While Parks’ reply to this answer may argue that Parks’ counsel submitted the sentencing
memorandum, Parks’ statements at sentencing reflect that counsel and Parks were of one mind
regarding the argument presented in the sentencing memorandum. At sentencing, it was Parks, not her
attorney who stated to the Court “so much of what was done was mischaracterized.” Id. at 117. She
further stated, “I believe that the pre-sentencing memo that my attorney Mr. Goldstein filed speaks well
to what did happen.” Id. at 118. Parks added, “Things could have been done better, or differently, but at
no time was anything done with any intent to harm.” /d. Parks emphasized that they never physically
neglected or harmed anyone. /d. at119.

At Parks’ sentencing, the Court rejected the arguments of Parks and her counsel, as well as the
recommendation in the PSI and imposed an aggregated term of 16-40 years. /d. at 211-13.

2.) Parks failed to meet her burden under Strickland

In order to demonstrate that her trial counsel was ineffective, Parks must demonstrate (1) that
counsel gave her constitutionally deficient advice; and (2) that she suffered prejudice as a result of
following the advice. Lafler, 566 U.S. at 164. In Lafler, the advice of counsel was deficient, because

nothing in the law stated that the State could not prove intent to murder based upon where the victim

5
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was shot. /d. As discussed below, the record in this case presents no evidence of deficient conduct by
counsel.
a.) Parks does not present any evidence of deficient advice by counsel

By failing to plead the content of the rejected advice, Parks does not explain how the given
advice (if advice was given) was constitutionally deficient. See Lafler, 566 U.S. at 161.

In the present case, Parks’ petition alleges counsel advised her to reject a more favorable plea
deal. In the petition, Parks fails to state what advice counsel gave her (if counsel gave her any advice)
that caused her to reject the plea, as opposed to rejecting the stipulated sentence on her own accord. The
comments made by Parks at sentencing reflect that Parks failed to understand the seriousness of her
actions. A person not understanding the seriousness of her actions certainly would not believe that her
actions warranted a minimum prison term of 8 years. Parks clearly sought less than 8 years in prison (if
not probation). However, even if Parks’ attorney gave her advice to reject the stipulated sentence, the
advice is not constitutionally deficient if the advice was reasonable.

Whether to accept or reject a plea deal is ultimately the decision of the defendant, not counsel.
Wainwright v. Sykes, supra. Parks must prove that counsel’s advice was deficient, not merely wrong.
This Court’s scrutiny of trial counsel’s actions “must be highly deferential.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at
689. Because it is “all too easy” for a court to Monday morning quarterback the actions of counsel,
Strickland requires this Court’s assessment of counsel’s conduct to evaluate counsel’s conduct at the
time it was made.

b.) Parks presents no evidence of constitutionally deficient advice

Assuming Parks’ counsel gave advice, the question this Court must ask is not, “Was counsel’s
advice wrong?” Rather, the question is “Did counsel’s advice in this matter fall outside the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases?” Id. at 687. There is a difference between
“wrong,” but not deficient advice and constitutionally deficient advice. “Wrong” advice is only wrong
in hindsight and can still be the product of sound strategy and reasonable given the circumstances.
Reasonable advice based upon a strategic decision is virtually unchallengeable under Strickland, even if
the advice is “wrong” in hindsight. Id. at 689. On the other hand, “constitutionally deficient” advice is

wrong no matter the outcome of the proceedings (and unreasonable). In this case, the decision to reject
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the stipulation could be reasonable and the product of sound strategy, even though Parks received a
sentence higher than the rejected stipulation. Had Parks received the sentence recommended in the PSI,
Parks would not be presenting Ground One to the Court for consideration.

The sentencing memorandum presented reasonable, strategic reasons supporting a request for a
lower sentence than the stipulated 8 year minimum. The recommendation in the PSI reflected that these
arguments were not unreasonable. If counsel actually counseled Parks’ to reject the stipulation, the
PSI’s recommendation of a lower sentence supports a finding that counsel’s advice was reasonable, not
constitutionally deficient.

In this case, the record reveals that Parks rejected a stipulated sentence. Parks’ sentencing
memorandum (and statements to the Court) suggest that Parks sought a more lenient sentence of her
own accord, rather than rejecting the advice of counsel. In the sentencing memorandum, counsel
reasonably argued that several factors (including Parks’ absence of a record) merited a lower sentence
than the stipulated sentence of 8-20 years. Parks’ statements to the Court reflected her belief that her
actions may not have been wrong. However, if the actions were wrong, they did not merit a severe
prison sentence.

c.) Parks does not satisfy the deficient conduct prong of Strickland

If Parks rejected the stipulated sentence on her own, the analysis is over. The Court must find
that counsel was not ineffective. If Parks relied on counsel’s advice when rejecting the stipulation,
evidence in the record demonstrates that counsel’s advice was strategic, not constitutionally deficient,
only wrong in hindsight. It is reasonable to argue for a lower sentence for a defendant given the fact
that this was Parks’ first felony conviction. The fact that the PSI in this case recommended lower
minimum and maximum terms of imprisonment than the stipulated sentence demonstrates that seeking
a sentence lower than the rejected stipulated sentence was a reasonable decision.

The pleadings and record in this case contain no facts supporting a claim counsel gave
constitutionally deficient advice. The record reflects reasonable arguments for a lower sentence. The
PSI’s recommendation affirms that rejecting the stipulation and seeking a lower sentence was a
reasonable strategic decision. The record does not support Parks’ claim that counsel performed

deficiently (assuming counsel gave Parks advice to reject the stipulated sentence).
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D. Prejudice

Parks’ petition assumes prejudice. Just because Parks received a higher sentence than the
stipulation does not evidence prejudice under Strickland. In order to demonstrate prejudice (assuming
deficient conduct on the part of counsel), Parks must show that the Court would have imposed the
stipulated sentence had Parks agreed to recommend a stipulated sentence. Lafler, 566 U.S. at 168 (there
is no federal right that a judge must accept or abide by a plea).

E. Conclusion

Parks has not alleged how counsel was deficient. There is a significant difference between
“wrong,” advice that was based on strategy and advice that is “constitutionally deficient: The latter
violates the defendant’s rights under the constitution. The former happens daily in criminal cases across
the country. Conflating the two would hold trial counsel to a requirement of performing perfectly in
every case. Strickland (and our constitution) requires competence, not perfection.

Failing to establish deficient conduct under Strickland, Respondents request the Court find that
Parks failed to satisfy her burden of establishing trial counsel was ineffective for allegedly giving
defective advice, and further find that Ground One is meritless.
III.  Ground Two

In Ground Two of the supplemental petition, Parks alleges that trial counsel performed
ineffectively at her sentencing hearing. SPWHC at 9. Parks alleges: 1.) counsel failed to object to
improper arguments and present accurate information to rebut the State’s arguments (id. at 10), 2.)
failure to object to lack of notice about victim speakers (id. at 17), 3.) failure to object to the ordered
restitution (SPWHC at 24); 4.) failure to challenge the reasonableness of the sentence/the sentence
constituted cruel and unusual punishment. /d. at 28. These claims are procedurally defaulted under the
current state of Nevada law.

A. Ground Two is Procedurally Defaulted Pursuant to NRS 34.810(1)

1.) NRS 34.810(1)

Nevada law governs the procedure in state habeas proceedings. One of the habeas corpus

statutes, NRS 34.810(1)(a), limits the scope of claims in cases where the conviction is based upon a

plea, to those claims that allege “the plea was involuntarily or unknowingly entered” or “that the plea
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was entered without effective assistance of counsel.”
2.) Gonzales v. State

The Nevada Court of Appeals recently addressed the scope of claims that can be raised in a state
habeas petition challenging a judgment and sentence pursuant to a guilty plea. Gonzales v. State, 2020
WL 5889017 (NVCA, Order of Affirmance, October 1, 2020).°

The Court of Appeal in Gonzales held “both the plain language of the statute and the legislative
and statutory history of NRS 34.810(1)(a) demonstrate that the scope of claims that may be raised in a
postconviction petition challenging a conviction entered as a result of a guilty plea are limited to claims
that challenge the validity of the guilty plea.” Id. at *5. The Court of Appeals further held the claims
could be raised directly (the plea was not knowing intelligent or voluntary) or as a claim counsel was
ineffective during the plea process. 1d.

The Court of Appeals in Gonzales found NRS 34.810(1)(a) barred Gonzales’ claims challenging
counsel’s effectiveness at the sentencing hearing because the claims did not address the plea, or
counsel’s ineffectiveness during the plea. /d. at *6.

3.) Parks’ Ground Two claim is procedurally barred

Because Parks’ Ground Two claim does not challenge the voluntariness of the plea, or the
effectiveness of counsel at the change of plea, Respondents request the Court apply Gonzales and find
that Ground Two is defaulted.

IV.  Ground Three

In Ground Three of the supplemental petition, Parks alleges that counsel failed to file an appeal.
SPWHC at 33. Parks alleges that she specifically requested counsel file a notice of appeal. /d. at 34.

However, in the exhibits submitted by Parks, she submits a letter requesting counsel “get the
paperwork started for a sentence modification.” App 507. Parks’ counsel responded to Parks’ letter,
stating that the best option for obtaining a sentence modification was by filing a state habeas corpus
petition, and requesting appointment of counsel through the court. /d. at 508-09. Both letters reference

an in-person discussion that took place after sentencing.

11/
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A. Out of Time Appeals

The Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure (NRAP) address how to file an untimely appeal from
a judgment of conviction. NRAP 4(c)(1).

B. How to Construe the Letters Exchanged Between Counsel and Parks

Based upon the exhibits provided with the supplemental petition, a genuine issue of material
fact exists. That issue is: Whether Parks and counsel agreed that counsel should file a direct appeal, or
whether Parks would file a habeas corpus petition after their in-person meeting that took place after
sentencing. A plain reading of the letters exchanged between Parks and trial counsel reflect that Parks
and trial counsel discussed and agreed upon a strategy of how to proceed to obtain reconsideration of
Parks’ sentence. However, Parks appears to have forgotten exactly what was stated and how to proceed.
App 507. Counsel’s response appears to reiterate what counsel and Parks previously agreed upon. Id. at
508-09.

Parks’ letter cannot be construed upon as a request for an appeal. Parks clearly did not ask for an
appeal. While the supplemental petition states that the letter should be construed as a request to file a
notice of appeal, the more reasonable construction of the letter is Parks asking counsel to inform her
how to proceed based upon her inability to remember what was discussed. Counsel’s response clearly
reflected that after discussing the matter, counsel and Parks agreed that she would file a state habeas
petition challenging counsel’s effectiveness during the sentencing proceeding. A person without
knowledge or experience in criminal law would more likely use the term “appeal” to request an appeal
as opposed to the phrase “sentence modification.”

C. An Evidentiary Hearing May Be Necessary

Respondents concede that on Ground Three an evidentiary hearing could be necessary for this
Court to issue findings pursuant to NRAP 4(c)(1)(B). See, Nika v. State, 124 Nev. 1272, 1300-01, 198
P.3d 839, 858 (2008) (an evidentiary hearing is warranted when a petition “asserts specific factual
allegations that are not belied or repelled by the record and that, if true, would entitle [ ] relief”). Only
after hearing from the parties regarding the in-person meeting will this Court be able to determine the
merit of this claim. Without evidence of the nature of the discussions, and what specific challenges

were contemplated, the Court may be unable to determine whether an appeal, or a state habeas petition
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was the agreed upon course of conduct.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated herein, Respondents request the Court deny Grounds One and Two of
Parks’ supplemental habeas corpus petition. In order to determine whether Ground Three of the petition
warrants relief in the form of an untimely appeal, this Court should conduct an evidentiary hearing to
determine the content of the discussions between Parks and trial counsel during the meeting that took
place after Parks’ sentencing hearing.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 31 day of December 2020.

AARON D. FORD
Attorney General

By:  /s/Michael J. Bongard
Michael J. Bongard
Senior Deputy Attorney General
Nevada Bar No. 007997
mbongard@ag.nv.gov
Post-Conviction Division
1539 Avenue F, Suite 2
Ely, Nevada 89301
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AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that this pleading filed in the Eighth Judicial District Court

does not contain the social security number of any person.

DATED this 31* day of December 2020.

AARON D. FORD
Attorney General

By: /s/ Michael J. Bongard
Michael J. Bongard
Senior Deputy Attorney General
Nevada Bar No. 007997
mbongard@ag.nv.gov
Post-Conviction Division
1539 Avenue F, Suite 2
Ely, Nevada 89301
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I electronically filed the foregoing Answer to Post-Conviction Petition for
Writ of Habeas Corpus with the Clerk of the Court by using the electronic filing system on the 31 day
of December 2020.
The following participants in this case are registered electronic filing system users and will be

served electronically:

Jamie J. Resch

RESCH LAW, PLLC

2620 Regatta Dr., Suite 102

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89128
Jresch@convictionsolutions.com

/s/ M. Landreth
An Employee of the office of the Attorney General
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Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565

JAY P. RAMAN FILED IN OPEN COURT
Chief Deputy District Attorney STEVEN D. GRIERSON
Nevada Bar #010193 CLERK OF THE COURTY
ADAMP. LAXALT

Nevada Attorney General MAR 0 8§ 2017
Nevada Bar #012426

DANIEL E. WESTMEYER .y
Senior Depug Attorney General 8
Nevada Bar #010273 DULCE MARIE ROMEA, DEPUTY

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, CASE NO: C-17-321808-1

-VS- DEPT NO: X
APRIL PARKS #1571645
MARK SIMMONS
GARY NEAL TAYLOR
NOEL PALMER SIMPSON
INDICTMENT

Defendant(s).

STATE OF NEVADA
$S.

COUNTY OF CLARK

The Defendant(s) above named, APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, GARY NEAL
TAYLOR, and NOEL PALMER SIMPSON, are accused by the Clark County Grand Jury of
the crimes of RACKETEERING (Category B Felony - NRS 207.400 - NOC 53190); THEFT
(Category B Felony - NRS 205.0832, 205.0835.4 - NOC 55991); EXPLOITATION OF AN
OLDER PERSON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.5092, 200.5099 - NOC 50304);
EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON/VULNERABLE PERSON (Category B Felony
- NRS 200.5092, 200.5099 - NOC 55984); THEFT (Category C Felony - NRS 205.0832,
205.0835.3 - NOC 55989); OFFERING FALSE n]!}\I1STRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

C-17-321808 -

IND
Indiciment
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(Category C Felony - NRS 239.330 - NOC 52399) and PERJURY (Category D Felony - NRS
199.120 - NOC 52971), committed at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, on or
between December 21, 2011 and July 6, 20186, as follows:
COUNT 1 - RACKETEERING

Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, and GARY NEAL TAYLOR, did on
or between December 21, 2011 and July 6, 2016, then and there, within Clark County, Nevada,
knowingly, willfully and feloniously, while employed by or associated with an enterprise,
conduct or participate either directly or indirectly, in racketeering activity through the affairs
of said enterprise, and/or in the affairs of the enterprise through racketeering activity, did
engage in said acts, to wit: by Defendants working for A Private Professional Guardian, LLC
using their position to steal funds belonging to elderly and disabled persons over whom they
had guardianship authority, through the use of a series of fraudulent billing practices, said
activity constituting Racketeering contrary to NRS 207.400 (1)(c}(2). Defendants APRIL
PARKS and MARK SIMMONS also intentionally organized, managed, directed, and
supervised a criminal syndicate as defined in NRS 207.370, namely A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC, a business that was formed on May 23, 2011, that had at various times between
3 and 7 employees and continued to engage in or had the purpose of engaging in racketeering
activity even when individual members entered or left the organization, all contrary to NRS
207.400 (1)(d). Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS also conspired to violate
the provisions of the racketeering statutes, contrary to NRS 207.400 (1)(j). The Defendants
engaged in racketeering activity by committing numerous crimes involving taking property
from another under circumstances not amounting to robbery, perjury or subornation of perjury,
and offering false evidence. Through this racketeering activity, APRIL PARKS and MARK
SIMMONS stole approximately $559,205.32 from 150 victims, as further alleged in Counts
2-270 and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein; Defendants are criminally
liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with

the intent that this ¢rime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
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entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS operated
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC, and worked as guardians and fiduciaries and engaged
in various billing schemes to illegally obtain money from elderly and vulnerable people under
guardianship, as well as non-guardianship assets, as alleged in Counts 2 through 270, and
whereby GARY NEAL TAYLOR acted as agent of said entity and/or obtained monies from a
bank account in the name of said entity by engaging in said exploitative billing schemes and
conspiring to over bill for house checks, court trips, and/or other unnecessary services; and/or
(3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 2 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between May 3, 2012
and July 11, 2012 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to AUDREY WEBER and/or the ESTATE OF
AUDREY WEBER, in the following manner, to wit: through the use of a false billing scheme,
thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to AUDREY WEBER and/or the ESTATE
OF AUDREY WEBER in the amount of approximately $3,819.60. Defendants are criminally
liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for AUDREY
WEBER and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on
behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit AUDREY WEBER
or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson
to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips,
bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either
did not benefit AUDREY WEBER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
1
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Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to
commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 3 - THEFT

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 10, 2012 willfully, knowingly,
feloniously, and without lawful authority, convert, make an unauthorized transfer of an interest
in, or without authorization control property, having a value of $3,500.00, or more, belonging
to WILLIAM FLEWELLEN and/or the ESTATE OF WILLIAM FLEWELLEN, in the
following manner, to wit: by misrepresenting that guardianship papers presented to Bank of
America authorized her 1o control said property, knowing this to be false, with the intent to
deprive WILLIAM FLEWELLEN and/or the ESTATE OF WILLIAM FLEWELLEN, of
control of his property, said property having a value of approximately $4,807.61.
COUNT 4 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and NOEL PALMER SIMPSON did on between August
22, 2011 and May 15, 2012 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
obtain lawful money of the United States in the amount of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to
JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON, by a material misrepresentation with intent to
deprive those persons of the property, in the following manner, to wit: by APRIL PARKS
exceeding her authority as guardian of MARY WOODS changing MARY WOODS’ life
insurance beneficiary from JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON to herself, without
court permission; and by NOEL PALMER SIMPSON filing a Petition to Set Aside Estate
Without Administration in the Clark County District Court, containing false statements in the

probate case of MARY WOODS, and unlawfully changing MARY WOODS® life insurance

“beneficiary from JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON to the ESTATE OF MARY

WOODS, thereby depriving JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON of $25,278.57, from
which NOEL PALMER SIMPSON was paid $9,196.70. Defendants are criminally liable
under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with

the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
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entering into a course of conduct whereby by APRIL PARKS exceeded her authority as
guardian of MARY WOODS and changed MARY WOODS’ life insurance beneficiary from
JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON to herself, without court permission; and whereby
NOEL PALMER SIMPSON filed a Petition to Set Aside Estate Without Administration in the
Clark County District Court, containing false statements in the probate case of MARY
WOODS P-12-074144-E, and unlawfully changing MARY WOODS’ life insurance
beneficiary from JOHN DENTON and/or SALLY DENTON to the ESTATE OF MARY
WOODS; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 5 - THEFT

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 29, 2011 willfully, knowingly,
feloniously, and without lawful authority, convert, make an unauthorized transfer of an interest
in, or without authorization control property, having a value of $3,500.00, or more, belonging
to BAXTER BURNS and/or the ESTATE OF BAXTER BURNS and/or THE BURNS
FAMILY TRUST, in the following manner, to wit: by misrepresenting that guardianship
papers presented to Bank of America authorized her to control said property which allowed
her to unlawfully control trust assets, knowing this to be false, with the intent to deprive
BAXTER BURNS and/or the ESTATE OF BAXTER BURNS and/or THE BURNS FAMILY
TRUST, of his property. said property having a value of approximately $32,006.72.
COUNT 6 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 3,
2012 and November 4, 2013 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1922, to wit: DOROTHY TRUMBICH and/or THE DOROTHY A.
TRUMBICH REVOKABLE TRUST, by use of a guardianship converting DOROTHY
TRUMBICH’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive
DOROTHY TRUMBICH of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or
property having an value of more than 3$5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and

fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, banking visits, and/or by
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unlawfully controlling trust assets, thereby exploiting DOROTHY TRUMBICH in the amount
of approximately $167,204.49. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DOROTHY TRUMBICH and
overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DOROTHY TRUMBICH or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or by unlawfully controlling assets from THE DOROTHY A. TRUMBICH
REVOKABLE TRUST and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC
that either did not benefit DOROTHY TRUMBICH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a
conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 7 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 4, 2013
and November 4, 2013 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to DOROTHY TRUMBICH and/or the ESTATE OF
DOROTHY TRUMBICH and/or THE DOROTHY A. TRUMBICH REVOKABLE TRUST,
in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, banking visits. and/or by unlawfully controlling trust
assets, thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to DOROTHY TRUMBICH and/or
THE DOROTHY A. TRUMBICH REVOKABLE TRUST in the amount of approximately
$167,204.49. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles

of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or

AA 0715




—

(=R s - < - O R - Y )

[ T S T S o o L o T N L N T N Y S G,
o0 1 O L B WD = O W oD~ N n B W N —

abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by
providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DOROTHY TRUMBICH and overcharged for ward
visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or unlawfully control the assets of THE DOROTHY
A. TRUMBICH REVOKABLE TRUST and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DOROTHY TRUMBICH or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
DOROTHY TRUMBICH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this
crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 8 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 16, 2013
and November 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1925, to wit: RUTH BRASLOW, by Defendants, having the trust or confidence
of RUTH BRASLOW or by use of a power of attorney or guardianship, obtain control, through
deception, intimidation or undue influence, over RUTH BRASLOW's money, assets or
property and/or by converling RUTH BRASLOW'’s money, assets or property, Defendants
intending to permanently deprive RUTH BRASLOW of the ownership, use, benefit or
possession of her money, assets or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by
working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court
filings, banking visits, and fraudulent fees thereby exploiting RUTH BRASLOW in the
amount of approximately $13,180.67. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of
the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of

conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for RUTH BRASLOW and overcharged
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for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did not benefit RUTH BRASLOW or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
RUTH BRASLOW or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 9 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 16, 2013
and November 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to RUTH BRASLOW and/or the ESTATE OF RUTH
BRASLOW, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, banking visits, and fraudulent
fees thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to RUTHH BRASLOW in the amount of
approximately $13,180.67. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for RUTH BRASLOW and overcharged
for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RUTH BRASLOW or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did not benefit
RUTH BRASLOW or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
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and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 10 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 4, 2013
and November 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1948, to wit: JAMES POYA, by use of a guardianship, obtain control over
JAMES POYA’s money, assets or property and/or by converting JAMES POYA’s money,
assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive JAMES POYA of the
ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having an value of more
than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting JAMES POYA in the
amount of approximately $6,032.50. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by provfding counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for JAMES POYA and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JAMES POYA or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
JAMES POY A or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or
Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 11 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 4, 2013
and November 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the

services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
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limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to JAMES POYA and/or the ESTATE OF JAMES
POYA, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to JAMES POYA in the amount of approximately $6,032.50.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for JAMES POYA and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
JAMES POYA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or
Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit JAMES POYA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a
conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 12 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between November 3,
2014 and November 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1942, to wit: CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH, by use of a guardianship
converting CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending
to permanently deprive CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH of the ownership, use, benefit or
possession of her money, assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working
in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and
banking visits thereby exploiting CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH in the amount of
approximately $3,804.39. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following

principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
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aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 13 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between November 3,
2014 and November 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession
for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use,
having a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH and/or the
ESTATE OF CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH, in the following manner, to wit: by working in
their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and
banking visits thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to CAROLYN
RICKENBAUGH in the amount of approximately $3,804.39. Defendants are criminally liable
under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for CAROLYN
RICKENBAUGH and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit CAROLYN
RICKENBAUGH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
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and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant
to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 14 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and November 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1930, to wit: DELMOND FOSTER, by use of a guardianship converting
DELMOND FOSTER’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive DELMOND FOSTER of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting DELMOND FOSTER in the amount of approximately $5,134.40. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for DELMOND FOSTER and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit DELMOND FOSTER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that cither did not benefit DELMOND FOSTER or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.

1
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COUNT 15 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and November 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to DELMOND FOSTER and/or the ESTATE OF
DELMOND FOSTER, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully eonverting money belonging to DELMOND FOSTER in the amount of
approximately $5,134.40. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DELMOND FOSTER and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit DELMOND FOSTER or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK
SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
DELMOND FOSTER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant 1o a conspiracy to comnit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 16 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 2, 2013
and November 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1928, to wit: WILLIAM BRADY, by use of a guardianship converting
WILLIAM BRADY’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive WILLIAM BRADY of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets
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or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting WILLIAM BRADY in the amount of approximately $9,470.80. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for WILLIAM BRADY and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did
not benefit WILLIAM BRADY or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalt of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit WILLIAM BRADY or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed,
COUNT 17 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 2, 2013
and NovemBer 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to WILLIAM BRADY and/or the ESTATE OF
WILLIAM BRADY, in the following manner, Lo wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to WILLIAM BRADY in the amount of
approxi-mately $9,470.80. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by

aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
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by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for WILLIAM BRADY and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit WILLIAM BRADY or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit WILLIAM BRADY or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 18 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and September 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1931, to wit: PATRICIA SMOAK, by use of a guardianship converting
PATRICIA SMOAK'’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive PATRICIA SMOAK of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets
or property having an value of morc than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting PATRICIA SMOAK in the amount of approximately $5,563.60. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for PATRICIA SMOAK and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit PATRICIA SMOAK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the

same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
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Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit PATRICIA SMOAK or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 19 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL. PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and September 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to PATRICIA SMOAK and/or the ESTATE OF
PATRICIA SMOAK, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for wisits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to PATRICIA SMOAK in the amount of
approximately $5,563.60. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for PATRICIA SMOAK and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LILC that either did not benefit PATRICIA SMOAK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit PATRICIA SMOAK or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
1
1

16
AA 0725




—

[ B (o B - I I = . . R S VS T o |

[ A L s L e L R s R L L 1 T e e e ™" GG,
= = B . T L N ¥ e R == T X = T - . N T« S ¥ s N P B N

COUNT 20 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 24,
2013 and September 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1934, to wit: MARILYN SCHOLL, by use of a guardianship converting
MARILYN SCHOLL’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive MARILYN SCHOLL of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets
or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting MARILYN SCHOLL in the amount of approximately $6,262.48. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for MARILYN SCHOLL and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit MARILYN SCHOLL or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARILYN SCHOLL or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 21 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 24,
2013 and September 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession
for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use,

having a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to MARILYN SCHOLL and/or the ESTATE
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OF MARILYN SCHOLL, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to MARILYN SCHOLL in the amount of
approximately $6,262.48. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for MARILYN SCHOLL and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit MARILYN SCHOLL or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK
SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARILYN
SCHOLL or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue
Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 22 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL. PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 5, 2015
and September 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1944, to wit: KENNETH EDWARDS, by use of a guardianship converting
KENNETH EDWARDS’ money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive KENNETH EDWARDS of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting KENNETH EDWARDS in the amount of approximately $2,622.62. Defendants
are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of

this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
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encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whercby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for KENNETH EDWARDS and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit KENNETH EDWARDS or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit KENNETH EDWARDS or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime
be committed. .
COUNT 23 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or betwcen January 5, 2015
and September 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, haviﬁg
a value of $650.00 or more, belonging to KENNETH EDWARDS and/or the ESTATE OF
KENNETH EDWARDS, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to KENNETH EDWARDS in the amount of
approximately $2,622.62. Dcfendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be commiltted,
By providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for KENNETH EDWARDS and overcharged for ward
visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit KENNETH EDWARDS or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and

MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
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other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
KENNETH EDWARDS or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this
crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 24 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 5,
2013 and September 17, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1931, to wit: GLORIA SCHNERINGER, by use of a guardianship
converting GLORIA SCHNERINGER’s moncy, assets or property, Defendants intending to
permanently deprive GLORIA SCHNERINGER of the ownership, use, benefit or possession
of her money, assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their
role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking
visits thereby exploiting GLORIA SCHNERINGER in the amount of approximately
$2,830.50. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing
counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL
PARKS acted as guardian for GLORIA SCHNERINGER and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit GLORIA SCHNERINGER or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pchrson to do the same; and MARK
SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit GLORIA
SCHNERINGER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
1
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COUNT 25 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 5,
2013 and September 17, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession
for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use,
having a value of $650.00 or more, belonging to GLORIA SCHNERINGER and/or the
ESTATE OF GLORIA SCHNERINGER, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their
role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking
visits thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to GLORIA SCHNERINGER in the
amount of approximately $2,830.50. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of
the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for GLORIA SCHNERINGER and
overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit GLORIA SCHNERINGER or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit GLORIA SCHNERINGER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 26 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and September 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1937, to wit: JANICE MITCHELL, by use of a guardianship converting JANICE
MITCHELL’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive

JANICE MITCHELL of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or
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property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting JANICE MITCHELL in the amount of approximately $4,766.37. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for JANICE MITCHELL and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LI.C that either did
not benefit JANICE MITCHELL or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JANICE MITCHELL or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 27 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between April 4, 2013
and September 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the setvices or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to JANICE MITCHELL and/or the ESTATE OF
JANICE MITCHELL, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to JANICE MITCHELL in the amount of
approximately $4,766.37. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by

aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
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by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for JANICE MITCHELL and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit JANICE MITCHELL or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JANICE MITCHELL or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 28 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 3,
2013 and December 8, 2014 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1932, to wit: MARY VITEK, by use of a guardianship converting MARY
VITEK’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive MARY
VITEK of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or property having
an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting MARY VITEK
in the amount of approximately $2,705.39. Defendants are criminally liable under on¢ or more
of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for MARY VITEK and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARY VITEK or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
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MARY VITEK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 29 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 3,
2013 and December 8, 2014 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession
for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use,
having a value of $650.00 or more, belonging to MARY VITEK and/or the ESTATE OF
MARY VITEK, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to MARY VITEK in the amount of approximately
$2,705.39. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing
counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL
PARKS acted as guardian for MARY VITEK and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips,
bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either
did not benefit MARY VITEK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARY VITEK or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3)
pursuant Lo a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 30 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 5, 2013
and February 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been

born in 1921, to wit: CLYDE BOWMAN, by use of a guardianship converting CLYDE
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BOWMAN’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive
CLYDE BOWMAN of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or
property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting CLYDE BOWMAN in the amount of approximately $3,820.14. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for CLYDE BOWMAN and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that ¢ither did
not benefit CLYDE BOWMAN or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit CLYDE BOWMAN or did not occur,
and/or dirccted Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 3] - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 5, 2013
and February 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to CLYDE BOWMAN and/or the ESTATE OF
CLYDE BOWMAN, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money bclonging to CLYDE BOWMAN in the amount of

approximately $3,820.14. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
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principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for CLYDE BOWMAN and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit CLYDE BOWMAN or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit CLYDE BOWMAN or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 32 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Dcfendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 5, 2013
and July 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1925, to wit: ROY FRANKLIN, by use of a guardianship converting ROY
FRANKLIN’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive ROY
FRANKLIN of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property
having an value of more than $5,000.00, by -working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting ROY
FRANKLIN in the amount of approximately $5,806.97. Defendants are criminally liable
under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for ROY
FRANKLIN and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks
on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit ROY
FRANKLIN or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or [1eidi Kramer and/or
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Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit ROY FRANKLIN or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a
conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 33 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL. PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 5, 2013
and July 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to ROY FRANKLIN and/or the ESTATE OF ROY
FRANKLIN, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money befonging to ROY FRANKLIN in the amount of approximately
$5,806.97. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing
counse! and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL
PARKS acted as guardian for ROY FRANKLIN and overcharged for ward visits, shopping
trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that
either did not benefit ROY FRANKLIN or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit ROY FRANKLIN or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.

1
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COUNT 34 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 3,
2013 and November 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person
having been born in 1929, to wit: JUANITA GRAHAM, by use of a guardianship converting
JUANITA GRAHAM’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive JUANITA GRAHAM of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money,
assets or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting JUANITA GRAHAM in the amount of approximately $5,766.75. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for JUANITA GRAHAM and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit JUANITA GRAHAM or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JUANITA GRAHAM or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 35 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL, PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 3,
2013 and November 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority,
use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession
for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use,

having a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to JUANITA GRAHAM and/cr the ESTATE
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OF JUANITA GRAHAM, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to JUANITA GRAHAM in the amount of
approximately $5,766.75. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for JUANITA GRAHAM and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit JUANITA GRAHAM or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK
SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JUANITA
GRAHAM or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or
Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 36 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 3, 2014
and May 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1935, to wit: YOSHIKO KINDAICHI, by use of a guardianship converting
YOSHIKO KINDAICHI's money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive YOSHIKO KINDAICHI of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money,
assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting YOSHIKO KINDAICH! in the amount of approximately $3,699.28. Defendants
are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of

this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
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encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for YOSHIKO KINDAICHI and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit YOSHIKO KINDAICHI or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LI.C that either did not benefit YOSHIKO KINDAICHI or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime
be committed.
COUNT 37 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 3, 2014
and May 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to YOSHIKO KINDAICHI and/or the ESTATE OF
YOSHIKO KINDAICHI, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to YOSHIKO KINDAICHI in the amount of
approximately $3,699.28. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for YOSHIKO KINDAICHI and overcharged for ward
visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit YOSHIKO KINDAICHI or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and

MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
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other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
YOSHIKO KINDAICHI or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this
crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 38 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 4, 2013
and June 5, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1934, to wit: WALTER WRIGHT, by use of a guardianship converting WALTER
WRIGHT’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive
WALTER WRIGHT of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or
property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting WALTER WRIGHT in the amount of approximately $4,183.08. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for WALTER WRIGHT and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit WALTER WRIGHT or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit WALTER WRIGHT or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
i
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CQOUNT 39 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 4, 2013
and June 5, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to WALTER WRIGHT and/or the ESTATE OF
WALTER WRIGHT, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to WALTER WRIGHT in the amount of
approximately $4,183.08. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for WALTER WRIGHT and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit WALTER WRIGHT or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit WALTER WRIGHT or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 40 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 3, 2014
and June 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1932, to wit: DELORES SMITH, by use of a guardianship converting DELORES
SMITH’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive DELORES

SMITH of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or property having
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an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting DELORES
SMITH in the amount of approximately $6,166.30. Defendants are criminally liable under
one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing
this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that
this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a
course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DELORES SMITH and
overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DELORES SMITH or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit DELORES SMITH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to
commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 4! - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 5, 2014
and June 4, 20135 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to DELORES SMITH and/or the ESTATE OF
DELORES SMITH, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to DELORES SMITH in the amount of
approximately $6,166.30. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,

by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
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APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DELORES SMITH and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit DELORES SMITH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DELORES SMITH or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the

crime be committed.

COUNT 42 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 3, 2012
and December 17, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1939, to wit: MARILENE HOMER, by use of a guardianship converting
MARLENE HOMER’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive MARLENE HOMER of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets
or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting MARLENE HOMER in the amount of approximately $11,582.40. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for MARLENE HOMER and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit MARLENE HOMER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private

Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARLENE HOMER or did not occur,
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and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 43 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 3, 2012

and December 17, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to MARLENE HOMER and/or the ESTATE OF
MARILENE HOMER, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to MARLENE HOMER in the amount of
approximately $11,582.40 Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for MARLENE HOMER and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit MARLENE HOMER or did not occur, and/or dirccted Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARLENE HOMER or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 44 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Detendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 3, 2012

and March 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
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born in 1919, to wit: MARIE LONG, by use of a guardianship converting MARIE LONG’s
money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive MARIE LONG of
the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or property having an value of
more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting MARIE LONG in the
amount of approximately $10,708.45. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of
the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for MARIE LONG and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARIE LONG or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
MARIE LONG or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 45 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 3, 2012
and March 4, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to MARIE LONG and/or the ESTATE OF MARIE
LONG, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to MARIE LONG in the amount of approximately $10,708.45.

Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
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liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2} by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for MARIE LONG and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
MARIE LONG or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit MARIE LONG or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a
conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 46 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 19,
2013 and July 3, 2014 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1936, to wit: RUDY NORTH, by use of a guardianship converting RUDY
NORTH's money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive RUDY
NORTTH of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having
an value of more than 3650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting RUDY NORTH
in the amount of approximately $1,449.30. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more
of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2} by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for RUDY NORTH and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on bchalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RUDY NORTH or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and

MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
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other tasks on behalf of A Privatc Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
RUDY NORTH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 47 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 19,
2013 and July 3, 2014 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $630.00 or more, belonging to RUDY NORTH and/or the ESTATE OF RUDY
NORTH, in the following manner, to wit; by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thercby unlawfully
converting money belonging to RUDY NORTH in the amount of approximately $1,449.30.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for RUDY NORTH and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tusks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
RUDY NORTH or did not oceur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or othcr tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit RUDY NORTH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a
conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COLUNT 48 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 4, 2013

and May 35, 2014 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
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bomn in 1938, to wit: RENNIE NORTH, by use of a guardianship converting RENNIE
NORTH’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive RENNIE
NORTH of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or property having
an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting RENNIE NORTH
in the amount of approximately $1,449.30. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more
of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for RENNIE NORTH and overcharged
for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RENNIE NORTH or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Hetdi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
RENNIE NORTH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 49 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between October 4, 2013
and May 5, 2014 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $650.00 or more, belonging to RENNIE NORTH and/or the ESTATE OF RENNIE
NORTH, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to RENNIE NORTH in the amount of approximately $1,449.30.

Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
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liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for RENNIE NORTH and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit RENNIE NORTH or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RENNIE NORTH or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 50 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 3,
2013 and August 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1927, to wit: HAROLD LOCKWOOD, by use of a guardianship converting
HAROLD LOCKWOOD's money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive HAROLD LOCKWOOD of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting HAROLD LOCKWOOD in the amount of approximately $4,528.00. Defendants
are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of
this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for HAROLD LOCKWOOD and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit HAROLD LOCKWOOD or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
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and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit HAROLD LOCKWOOD
or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson
to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that
the crime be committed.
COUNT 5! - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between September 3,
2013 and August 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to HAROLD LOCKWOOD and/or the ESTATE OF
HAROLD LLOCKWOQOD, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to HAROLD LOCKWOOD in the amount of
approximately $4,528.00. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for HAROLD LOCKWOOD and overcharged for ward
visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit HAROLD LOCKWOOD or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or
other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
HAROLD LOCKWOOD or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this

crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
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COUNT 52 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between May 24, 2013
and January 5, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1932, to wit: NORBERT WILKENING, by use of a guardianship converting
NORBERT WILKENING’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive NORBERT WILKENING of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbiiling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting NORBERT WILKENING in the amount of approximately $4,533.20. Defendants
are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of
this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for NORBERT WILKENING and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit NORBERT WILKENING or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did not benefit NORBERT WILKENING
or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson
to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that
the crime be committed.
COUNT 53 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between May 24, 2013
and January 5, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a

limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a

value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to NORBERT WILKENING and/or the ESTATE OF

42
AA 0751




o oo 1 N L B W N e

[ L B 6 T 6 B 0 e e e e e e e
W N = O WO o~ O th B W)= O

24

NORBERT WILKENING, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as
guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits
thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to NORBERT WILKENING in the amount
of approximately $4,533.20. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for NORBERT WILKENING and
overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit NORBERT WILKENING or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit NORBERT WILKENING or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
GCOUNT 54 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between June §, 2013
and November 4, 2013 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1941, to wit: ADOLFO GONZALEZ, by use of a guardianship converting
ADOLFO GONZALEZ’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive ADOLFO GONZALEZ of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
exploiting ADOLFO GONZALEZ in the amount of approximately $1,413.60. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this

crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
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encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for ADOLFO GONZALEZ and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, L1.C that either did
not benefit ADOLFO GONZALEZ or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pchrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit ADOLFO GONZALEZ or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime
be committed.
COUNT 58 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between June §, 2013
and November 4, 2013 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to ADOLFO GONZALEZ and/or the ESTATE OF
ADOLFO GONZALEZ, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to ADOLFO GONZALEZ in the amount of
approximately $1,413.60. Defendants are criminally liable under onc or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for ADOLFO GONZALEZ and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit ADOLFO GONZALEZ or did not occur, and/or directed
Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK

SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other
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tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit ADOLFO
GONZALEZ or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or
Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 56 - EXPLOITATION OF A VULNERABLE PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 6, 2013
and August 3, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit a vulnerable person having,
to wit: LINDA PHILLIPS, by use of a guardianship converting LINDA PHILLIPS’s money,
assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive LINDA PHILLIPS of the
ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having an value of more
than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting LINDA PHILLIPS in the
amount of approximately $3,445.26. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of
the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whercby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for LINDA PHILLIPS and overcharged
for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit LINDA PHILLIPS or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
LINDA PHILLIPS or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 57 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between August 6, 2013
and August 3, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
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services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to LINDA PHILLIPS and/or the ESTATE OF LINDA
PHILLIPS, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to LINDA PHILLIPS in the amount of approximately $3,445.26.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for LINDA PHILLIPS and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit LINDA PHILLIPS or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit LINDA PHILLIPS or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 58 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 3, 2012
and November 30, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1941, to wit: NORMAN WEINSTOCK, by use of a guardianship converting
NORMAN WEINSTOCK'’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive NORMAN WEINSTOCK of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money,
assets or property having an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby

exploiting NORMAN WEINSTOCK in the amount of approximately $15,068.18. Defendants
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are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of
this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for NORMAN WEINSTOCK and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did
not benefit NORMAN WEINSTOCK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Su¢ Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit NORMAN WEINSTOCK
or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson
to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that
the crime be committed.
COUNT 59 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 3, 2012
and November 30, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to NORMAN WEINSTOCK and/or the ESTATE OF
NORMAN WEINSTOCK, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as
guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits
thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to NORMAN WEINSTOCK in the amount
of approximately $15,068.18. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)} by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for NORMAN WEINSTOCK and

overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
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Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit NORMAN WEINSTOCK or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit NORMAN WEINSTOCK or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 60 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Detendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 1, 2011
and December 31, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1927, to wit: MARIA COOPER, by use of a guardianship converting MARIA
COOPER’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive MARIA
COOPER of'the ownership, use, benefit or possession of her money, assets or property having
an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting MARIA
COOPER in the amount of approximately $6,920.00. Defendants are criminally liable under
one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing
this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that
this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a
course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for MARIA COOPER and
overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit MARIA COOPER or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit MARIA COOPER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this

crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
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COUNT 6! - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 1, 2011
and December 31, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to MARIA COOPER and/or the ESTATE OF MARIA
COOPER, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to MARIA COOPER in the amount of approximately $6,920.00.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counse!
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for MARIA COOPER and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit MARIA COOPER or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LI1.C that either did not benefit MARIA COOPER or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 62 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON
| Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or between July 5, 2013 and May 4, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an
older person having been born in 1939, to wit: KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON, by use of
a guardianship converting KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON'’s money, assets or property,
Defendants intending to permanently deprive KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON of the
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ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having an value of more
than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby exploiting KENNETH
CHRISTOPHERSON in the amount of approximately $4,290.00. Defendants are criminally
liable under one or more of'the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for KENNETH
CHRISTOPHERSON and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, housc
checks, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, house checks, and/or other
tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, L1.C that either did not benefit KENNETH
CHRISTOPHERSON or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and GARY NEAL TAYLOR conducted unnecessary
services and/or overbiiled for services on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be

commiited.

COUNT 63 - THEFT

| Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or between July 5, 2013, and May 4, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without
lawful authority, use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in
their possession for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a
limited use, having a wvalue of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to KENNETH
CHRISTOPHERSON and/or the ESTATE OF KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON, in the
following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for

visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully converting money
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belonging to KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON in the amount of approximately $4,290.00.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON and overcharged for ward visits, shopping
trips, bank deposits, house checks, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
house checks, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either
did not benefit KENNETH CHRISTOPHERSON or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and GARY NEAL
TAYLOR conducted unnecessary services and/or overbilled for services on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
CQUNT 64 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 1, 2011
and December 31, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1918, to wit: JOSEPH MASSA, by use of a guardianship converting JOSEPH
MASSA’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive JOSEPH
MASSA of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having
an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby JOSEPH MASSA in the
amount of approximately $5,396.40. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of
the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime

be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
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conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for JOSEPH MASSA and overcharged for
ward visits, shopping trips, casino trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A
Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JOSEPH MASSA or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, casino trips,
bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either
did not benefit JOSEPH MASSA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to
commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 65 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between January 1, 2011
and December 31, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value 0f $3,500.00 or more, belonging to JOSEPH MASSA and/or the ESTATE OF JOSEPH
MASSA, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to JOSEPH MASSA in the amount of approximately $5,396.40.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for JOSEPH MASSA and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, casino trips,
bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either
did not benefit JOSEPH MASSA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the
same ward visits, shopping trips, casino trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A

Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit JOSEPH MASSA or did not
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occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime
be committed.
COUNT 66 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 1, 2014
and January 6, 2016, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having been
born in 1920, to wit: BLANCA GINORIO, by use of a guardianship converting BLANCA
GINORIO’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive
BLANCA GINORIO of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or
property having an value of more than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
BLANCA GINORIO in the amount of approximately $2,497.20. Defendants are criminally
liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for BLANCA
GINORIO and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks
on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit BLANCA
GINORIO or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue
Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping
trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that
either did not benefit BLANCA GINORIO or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 67 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between July 1, 2014
and January 6, 2016, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the

services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
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limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $650.00 or more, belonging to BLANCA GINORIO and/or the ESTATE OF
BLANCA GINORIO, in the following manner, to wit; by working in their role as guardian
and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to BLANCA GINORIO in the amount of
approximately $2,497.20. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for BLANCA GINORIO and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit BLANCA GINORIO or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit BLANCA GINORIO or
did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to
do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 68 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 31,
2009 and October 7, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older person having
been born in 1935, to wit: DANIEL CURRIE, by use of a guardianship converting DANIEL
CURRIE’s money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive DANIEL
CURRIE of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having
an value of more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling
for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby DANIEL CURRIE in the
amount of approximately $8,149.70. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of

the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime;
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and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime
be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of
conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for DANIEL CURRIE and overcharged
for ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DANIEL CURRIE or did not occur,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
DANIEL CURRIE or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime,
with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 69 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between December 31,
2009 and October 7, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to DANIEL CURRIE and/or the ESTATE OF
DANIEL CURRIE, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and
fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to DANIEL CURRIE in the amount of approximately
$8,149.70. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be ¢committed, by providing
counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL
PARKS acted as guardian for DANIEL CURRIE and overcharged for ward visits, shopping
trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that
either did not benefit DANIEL CURRIE or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
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documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit DANIEL CURRIE or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the samc; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 70 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 1, 2013
and July 10, 2015, willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit an older pcrson having been
born in 1926, to wit: RITA LAMPPA, by use of a guardianship converting RITA LAMPPA's
money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive RITA LAMPPA of
the ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having an value of
more than $5,000.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby RITA LAMPPA in the amount of
approximately $4,311.20. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for RITA LAMPPA and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping ‘trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit RITA LAMPPA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica
Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS
documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RITA LAMPPA or did not
occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the
same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime
be committed.
"
"
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COUNT 71 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between March 1, 2013
and July 10, 2015, willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the
services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a
limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a
value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to RITA LAMPPA and/or the ESTATE OF RITA
LAMPPA, in the following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary,
overbilling for visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits thereby unlawfully
converting money belonging to RITA LAMPPA in the amount of approximately $4,311.20.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for RITA LAMPPA and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank
deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
not benefit RITA LAMPPA or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same
ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit RITA LAMPPA or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3)
pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 72 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or about October 31, 2013 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit persons over the age
of 60, to wit: CYPRIAN FRASER and/or DONALD GRAHAM and/or HANS SCHOLL
and/or ADOLFO GONZALEZ and/or RUDY NORTH, RENNIE NORTH and/or HAROLD
LOCKWOOD and/or MARLENE HOMER and/or MARIE LONG and/or MARY VITEK
and/or NORBERT WILKENING and/or JACQUELINE NOSBICH, by use of a guardianship
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converting said victims’ money, assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently
deprive said victims of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of their money, assets or
property having an value of more than $650.00, by Defendants working in their role as
guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips, dropping off toilet paper, and
visiting mortuary, thereby depriving said victims in the amount of approximately $1,405.20.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counse!
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted
as guardian for the above-listed victims, and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips,
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
the victims or did not occur, and/or directed GARY NEAL TAYLOR to do the same; and
MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, and/or other tasks on
behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or should
have been provided by a greatly reduced cost; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit
this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 73 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS, and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or about October 31, 2013 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having
a value of $650.00 or more, belonging to CYPRIAN FRASER and/or DONALD GRAHAM
and/or HANS SCHOLL and/or ADOLFO GONZALEZ and/or RUDY NORTH and/or
RENNIE NORTH and/or HAROLD LOCKWOOD and/or MARLENE HOMER and/or
MARIE LONG and/or MARY VITEK and/or NORBERT WILKENING and/or
JACQUELINE NOSBICH and/or the estates of said victims, in the following manner, (o wit:
by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits, shopping trips,

dropping off toilet paper, and visiting mortuary, thereby unlawfully converting money
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belonging said victims in the amount of approximately $1,405.20. Defendants are criminally
liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly
committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with
the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by
entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for the above-
listed victims, and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, and/or other tasks on behalf of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or did not occur,
and/or directed GARY NEAL TAYLOR to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented
the same ward visits, shopping trips, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional
Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or should have been provided by a greatly
reduced cost; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 74 - EXPLOITATION OF A VULNERABLE PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or about February 20, 2015
willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit a vulnerable person having a mental illness, to
wit: BARBARA NEELY, by use of a guardianship converting BARBARA NEELY’s money,
assets or property, Defendants intending to permanently deprive BARBARA NEELY of the
ownership, use, benefit or possession of his money, assets or property having an value of more
than $650.00, by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for visits,
shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits and/or by withdrawing funds from BARBARA
NEELY’s account in excess of the amount actually billed to BARBARA NEELY, thereby
depriving BARBARA NEELY in the amount of approximately $895.00. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for BARBARA NEELY, and overcharged for ward visits, shopping trips, bank

deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did
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not benefit BARBARA NEELY or did not occur, and/or withdrew excessive funds from the
account of BARBARA NEELY, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer
and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LL.C that either did not benefit BARBARA NEELY or did not occur, and/or withdrew
excessive funds from the account of BARBARA NEELY, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 75 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or about February 20, 2015
willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the services or property of
another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for a limited, authorized period
of determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a value of $650.00 or more,
belonging to BARBARA NEELY and/or the ESTATE OF BARBARA NEELY, in the
following manner, to wit: by working in their role as guardian and fiduciary, overbilling for
visits, shopping trips, court filings, and banking visits, and/or by withdrawing funds from
BARBARA NEELY’s account in excess of the amount actually billed to BARBARA NEELY,
thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to BARBARA NEELY in the amount of
approximately $895.00. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following
principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by
aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby
APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for BARBARA NEELY, and overcharged for ward visits,
shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian,
LLC that either did not benefit BARBARA NEELY or did not occur, and/or withdrew
excessive funds from the account of BARBARA NEELY, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez
and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS

documented the same ward visits, shopping trips, bank deposits, and/or other tasks on behalf
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of A Private Professional Guardian, LL.C that either did not benefit BARBARA NEELY or
did not occur, and/or withdrew excessive funds from the account of BARBARA NEELY,
and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do the same;
and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be
committed.
COUNT 76 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about April 15, 2018, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a faise or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a receipt falsely representing that Defendant
had paid herself full and final guardianship fees related to BARBARA NEELY, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 77 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between February 1,
2012 and October 7, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit persons over the age
of 60, to wit: over 130 elderly persons under APRIL PARKS' guardianship, by converting
said persons’ money, assets or property, with Defendants intending to permanently deprive
said persons of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of their money, assets or property,
having a value of more than $3,000.00, in the amount of approximately $67,775.70, by use of
a scheme involving overbilling and/or multiple-bilting while making bank deposits for said
persons. Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing
counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL
PARKS acted as guardian for the above-listed victims, and overcharged for bank deposits
and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
the victims or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or

Sue Pehrson to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same bank deposits
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and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit
the victims or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or
Sue Pehrson to do the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that the erime be committed.
COUNT 78 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL. PARKS and MARK SIMMONS did on or between February 1,
2012 and October 7, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use
the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in their possession for
a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or tor a limited use, having
a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to over 130 elderly persons under APRIL PARKS’
guardianship, in the following manner, to wit: by use of a scheme involving overbilling and/or
multiple-billing while making bank deposits for said persons, thereby unlawfully converting
money belonging to said persons in the amount of approximately $67,775.70. Defendants are
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for the above-listed victims, and overcharged for bank deposits and/or other tasks on
behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same bank deposits and/or other tasks on
behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to do
the same; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 79 - EXPLOITATION OF AN OLDER PERSON

Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or between March 7, 2012 and October 7, 2015 willfully, unlawfully and feloniously exploit
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persons over the age of 60, to wit: over 109 elderly persons under APRIL PARKS’
guardianship, by converting said persons’ money, assets or property, with Defendants
intending Lo permanently deprive said persons of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of
their money, assets or property, ha_ving a value of more than $5,000.00, in the amount of
approximately $74,229.90, by use of a scheme involving overbilling and/or multiple-billing
while making court appearances and/or filing court paperwork for said persons. Defendants
are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit:
(1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of
this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or
encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as
guardian for the above-listed victims, and overcharged for making court appearances and/or
filing court paperwork and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC
that either did not benefit the victims or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or
Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson and/or GARY NEAL TAYLOR to do the same; and MARK
SIMMONS documented the same court appearances and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the vicims or did not occur, and/or
directed Angelica Sanchez and/of Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehfson and/or GARY NEAL
TAYLOR to do the same; and GARY NEAL TAYLOR made unnecessary court trips and
multiple-billed said victims for making these court trips; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy
to commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 80 - THEFT

Defendants APRIL PARKS, MARK SIMMONS and GARY NEAL TAYLOR did on
or between March 7, 2012 and October 7, 2015 willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without
lawful authority, use the services or property of another person entrusted to them, or placed in
their possession for a limited, authorized period of determined or prescribed duration or for a
limited use, having a value of $3,500.00 or more, belonging to over 109 elderly persons under
APRIL PARKS’ guardianship, in the following manner, to wit: by use of a scheme involving

overbilling and/or muitiple-billing while making court appearances and/or filing court
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paperwork for said persons, thereby unlawfully converting money belonging to said persons
in the amount of approximately $74,229.90. Defendants are criminally liable under one or
more of the following principles of criminal liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this
crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this
crime be committed, by providing counsel and/or encouragement and by entering into a course
of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted as guardian for the above-listed victims, and
overcharged for making court appearances and/or filing court paperwork and/or other tasks on
behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either did not benefit the victims or did
not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchcz and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson and/or
GARY NEAL TAYLOR to do the same; and MARK SIMMONS documented the same court
appearances and/or other tasks on behalf of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that either
did not benefit the victims or did not occur, and/or directed Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi
Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson and/or GARY NEAL TAYLOR to do the same; and GARY NEAL
TAYLOR made unnecessary court trips and multiple-billed said victims for making these
court trips; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that the
crime be committed.
COUNT 81 - THEFT

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or between April 1, 2012 and August 27, 2013
willfully, knowingly, feloniously, and without lawful authority, use the services or property of
another person entrusted to her, or placed in her possession for a limited, authorized period of
determined or prescribed duration or for a limited use, having a value of $650.00 or more,
belonging to WILLIAM ARNOLD and/or DOUGLAS JOBSON and/or AUDREY WEBER,
AVA MARTIN and/or DAKOTA JONES and/or PATRICIA BROADAWAY, in the
following manner, to wit: by use of a false billing scheme involving applications to become a
Social Security representative payee for each of the above-named individuals, thereby
unlawfully converting money belonging to said persons in the amount of approximately
$1,344.00, and/or by directing Angelica Sanchez and/or Heidi Kramer and/or Sue Pehrson to

do the same.

64
AA 0773




e B v I R o O T e T

| o N N T N I o N o e e o o N N e e SN S S
o0 -1 O n B W N = O D 0 1 B W - O

COUNT 82 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 21, 2011 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition for Appointment of Temporary
and General Guardian of the Person and Estate containing false statements in the case of
BAXTER BURNS G-11-036744-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 83 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 15, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First and Final Account and Report of
Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees, Termination of Guardianship, and for Instructions
containing false statements in the case of WILLIAM ARNOLD G-11-036382-A, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 84 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendants APRIL PARKS and NOEL PALMER SIMPSON did on or about April 19,
2012 willfully, unlawfully, knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition
to Set Aside Estate without Administration in the probate case of MARY WOOQODS P-12-
074144-E, in which Petition Defendants claim that there is no record of a last will and
testament of MARY WOODS, knowing this to be false; which instrument, if genuine, might
be filed, registered, or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
Defendants are criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by providing counsel
and/or encouragement and by entering into a course of conduct whereby APRIL PARKS acted

as guardian for MARY WOODS, and offered for filing a Petition to Set Aside Estate without
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Administration in the probate case of MARY WOODS P-12-074144-E; and whereby NOEL
PALMER SIMPSON authored the same Petition to Set Aside Estate Without Administration
in the probate case of MARY WOOQDS P-12-074144-E, knowing that APRIL PARKS would
file said petition without having authority to do so; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to
commit this crime, with the intent that the crime be committed.
COUNT 85 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 15, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the case of DOUGLAS JOBSON G-
12-036961-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 86 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 18, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the case of AUDREY WEBER G-
12-036900-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 87 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 18, 2013 willfully made a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting in the guardianship case of AUDREY WEBER G-12-036900-
A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not
in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing
in question.

/1
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COUNT 88 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 18, 2013, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsitying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of serviccs provided
in the guardianship case of AUDREY WEBER G-12-036900-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in the
guardianship case of AUDREY WEBER G-12-036900-A, which document claimcd that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for scrvices rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 89 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 27, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the case of AVA MARTIN G-11-
036663-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 90 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 28, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the case of DAKOTA JONES G-12-
036960-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or rccorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 91 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about October 8, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered

or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
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Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the case of PATRICIA
BROADAWAY G-12-036924-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 92 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about Deeember 18, 2014 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, which document
claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the flling in question.
COUNT 93 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about December |8, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of
JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, which document claimed that APRIL. PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 94 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 18, 2014 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-
036043-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
1
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COUNT 95 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 30, 2015 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question. |
COUNT 96 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 30, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of
JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 97 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 30, 2015 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or ofter a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-
036043-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 98 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 25, 2016, willfully make a false

statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
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Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 99 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 25, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LL.C to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in the
guardianship case of JAMES POYA G-11-036043-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 100 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 25, 2016 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the guardianship case of JAMES
POYA G-11-036043-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 101 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 18, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which document
"
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claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to

the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 102 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 18, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commiit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of RUTH
BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 103 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 18, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-
038228-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any taw of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 104 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 4, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in

question.

1
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COUNT 105 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about May 4, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS to
commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of
RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,
which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 106 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 4, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-
038228-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 107 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 27, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Supplement to Second Annual
Accounting and Report of Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of
RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 108 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 3, 2016, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the

Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Approve Final Accounting
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in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 109 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about May 3, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS to
commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of RUTH BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Approve Final Accounting in the guardianship case of RUTH
BRASLOW G-13-038228-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for
services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 110 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 3, 2016 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Approve Final Accounting
containing false statements in the guardianship casc of RUTI BRASLOW G-13-038228-A,
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under
any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 11] - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016 willfully make a false
statement in é declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting in the guardianship case of CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH G-
14-040726-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees ftor services rendered
that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material

to the filing in question.
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COUNT 112 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 15, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH G-14-040726-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in the
guardianship case of CAROLYN RICKENBAUGH G-14-040726-A, which document
claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered
to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 113 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be flled, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the guardianship case of CAROLYN
RICKENBAUGH G-14-040726-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 114 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 4, 2015 willfully make a [lalse
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for flling with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Petition
for Payment of Fees in the guardianship case of WILLIAM BRADY G-10-035162-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,
COUNT 113 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 4, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS

to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
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Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of WILLIAM BRADY G-10-035162-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of petjury, a First Annual Accounting and Petition for Payment of Fees in the guardianship
case of WILLIAM BRADY G-10-035162-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 116 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 4, 2015 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Petition for
Payment of Fees containing false statements in the guardianship case of WILLIAM BRADY
G-10-035162-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a
public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 117 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting in the guardianship case of WILLIAM BRADY G-10-035162-
A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not
in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing
in question.
COUNT 118 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 15, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
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perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in the
guardianship case of WILLIAM BRADY G-10-035162-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 119 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting containing false statements in the guardianship case of WILLIAM
BRADY G-10-035162-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 120 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about October 2, 2013 willfully make a faise
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 12] - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about October 2, 2013, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of

DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
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owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question,
COUNT 122 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about October 2, 2013 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-
035339-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 123 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 9, 2015 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second and Final Account and Report
of Guardian and/or Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship in the
guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 124 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about January 9, 20135, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Second and Final Account and Report of Guardian and/or Petition for Payment
of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER
G-10-035339-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services
rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement

was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 125 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 9, 2015 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second and Final Account and Report of
Guardian and/or Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship containing
false statements in the guardianship case of DELMOND FOSTER G-10-035339-A, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 126 - PERJIURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 3, 2014 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.

COUNT 127 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about April 3, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of
PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 128 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 3, 2014 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-
10-035078-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office undcr any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 129 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 6, 2015 willfully make a falsc
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Third Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 130 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about April 6, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employces of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship casc of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Third Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of
PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 131 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 6, 2015 willfully, unlawfully,

knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
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or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Third Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian containing false statements in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-
035078-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada,
COUNT 132 - PERIURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 8, 2016 willfully make a false
statement in a dcclaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, 8 Fourth Annual Accounting of Co-
Guardian and Final Account of Former co-Guardian, April L, Parks, Manager of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC, in the guardianship casc of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-
A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not
in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing
in question.
COUNT 133 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 8, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for flling with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Fourth Annual Accounting of Co-Guardian and Final Account of Former co-
Guardian, April L. Parks, Manager of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC, in the
guardianship case of PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the
extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question,
COUNT 134 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March &, 2016 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered

or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Fourth Annual Accounting of Co-
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Guardian and Final Account of Former co-Guardian, April L. Parks, Manager of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC, containing false statements in the guardianship case of
PATRICIA SMOAK G-10-035078-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 138 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 14, 2014 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 136 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about November 14, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, which document claimed that APRII. PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 137 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 14, 2014 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of

Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-
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038909-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 138 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 31, 2015 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 139 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 31, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-13-038909-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 140 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 31, 2015 willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARILYN SCHOLL G-
13-038909-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
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COUNT 141 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 21, 2015 willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 142 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about January 21, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 143 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 21, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-
13-039636-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 144 - PERIURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016, willfully make a false

statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
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Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-
039636-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question,
CQOUNT 145 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 15, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penaity
of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of KENNETH EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 146 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 13, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of KENNETH
EDWARDS G-13-039636-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 147 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 30, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Fourth Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, which

document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
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rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 148 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on eor about May 30, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Fourth Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 149 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about May 30, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Fourth Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of GLORIA
SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 150 - PERJURY |

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about Mareh 23, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Fifth Annual Account and Report of
Guardian, Notice of Death of Co-Guardian James N, Schneringer and/or Order for
Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds, in the guardianship case of GLORIA
SCHNERINGER (G-09-034019-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which

statement was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 151 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 23, 2018, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly ofter for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Fifth Annual Account and Report of Guardian, Notice of Death of Co-Guardian
James N. Schneringer and/or Order for Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds, in the
guardianship case of GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, which document claimed
that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendercd to the
extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question,
COUNT 152 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 23, 2015, wiilfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Fifth Annual Account and Report of
Guardian, Notice of Decath of Co-Guardian James N. Schneringer and/or Order for
Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds, containing false statements in the guardianship
case of GLORIA SCHNERINGER G-09-034019-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be
filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 153 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 6, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of JANICE MITCHELL G-11-035593-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendercd that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.

H
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COUNT 154 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 6, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, L1.C to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of JANICE MITCHELL G-11-035593-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
Janice Mitchell G-11-035593-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 155 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 6, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of JANICE MITCHELL G-
11-035593-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 156 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 20, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of MARY VITEK G-12-037215-A,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 157 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 20, 2014, suborn APRIL

PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees
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of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARY VITEK G-12-037215-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of MARY VITEK G-12-037215-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 158 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 20, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARY
VITEK G-12-037215-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 159 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 18, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of CECILIA CASS G-13-039449-A, which document
claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 160 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about December 18, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of CECILIA CASS G-13-039449-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty

of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
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CECILIA CASS G-13-039449-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,
which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 161 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 18, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of CECILIA CASS G-13-
039449-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 162 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 3, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of ROY CASS G-13-039443-A,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,
COUNT 163 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 3, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS to
commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of Roy Cass G-13-039443-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS would
knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a
Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case
of ROY CASS G-13-039443-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which

statement was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 164 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 3, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of ROY CASS
(G-13-039443-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a
public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 165 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 8, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second and Final Account and Report
of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees, For Termination of Guardianship and To Set Aside
Estate without Administration, in the guardianship case of CLYDE BOWMAN 06G029707,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.

CQUNT 166 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about May 8, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit; by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of Clyde Bowman 06G029707, knowing that APRIL PARKS would
knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a
Second and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees, For
Termination of Guardianship and To Set Aside Estate without Administration, in the
guardianship case of CLYDE BOWMAN 06G029707, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

it
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COUNT 167 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 8, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second and Final Account and Report of
Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees, For Termination of Guardianship and To Set Aside
Estate without Administration, containing false statements in the guardianship case of CLYDE
BOWMAN 06G029707, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 168 - PERIURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 22, 2013, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which document
claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 169 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 22, 2013, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of ROY
FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was matcrial to the filing in question.
COUNT 170 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about July 22, 2013, willfully, unlawfully,

knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
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or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-
037404-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 171 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 20, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,
COUNT 172 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 20, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKILIN G-12-037404-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, undcr penalty
of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,
which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 173 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 20, 2014, wilifully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offcr a {alse or forged instrument to be flled, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-
1
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037404-A, which instrument, if genuiﬁe, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 174 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 23, 20185, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Third and Final Account and Report
of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, in the
guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 175 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 23, 20185, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
petjury, a Third and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and
for Termination of Guardianship, in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-
A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.
COUNT 176 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 23, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Third and Final Account and Report of
Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, containing false
statements in the guardianship case of ROY FRANKLIN G-12-037404-A, which instrument,
1
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if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of the State
of Nevada.
COUNT 177 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 3, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 178 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 3, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 179 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 3, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-
039161-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.

I
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COUNT 180 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 11, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,
COUNT 18] - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about November 11, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
cas¢ of JUANITA GRAHAM G-13-039161-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 182 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 11, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of JUANITA GRAHAM G-
13-039161-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 183 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 22, 2015, willfully make a false

statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
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Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report
of Guardian and Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, in the
guardianship case of YOSHIKO KINDAICHI G-13-039448-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question,
COUNT 184 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about November 22, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of YOSHIKO KINDAICHI G-13-039448-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian and Petition for Payment
of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, in the guardianship case of YOSHIKO
KINDAICHI G-13-039448-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 185 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 22, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First and Final Account and Report of
Guardian and Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, containing
false statements in the guardianship case of YOSHIKO KINDAICHI G-13-039448-A, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 186 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 21, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declarétion made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the

Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
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of Guardian, in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which
document ciaimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 187 - PERJURY

Detendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 21, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, knowing that
APRIL. PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 188 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 21, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-
036232-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 189 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about lune 23, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed {ees for services rendered that were not in fact

"
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rendered to the extcnt and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 190 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 23, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, undcr penalty
of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
owed fees for services rendcred that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was matcrial to the filing in question.
COUNT 191 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 23, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing falsc statements in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-
11-036232-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 192 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or sbout August 27, 2018, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-
036232-A, which document claimed that Dcfendant was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the tiling in question.
i
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COUNT 193 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 27, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit; by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in
the guardianship case of WALTER WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 194 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 27, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of WALTER
WRIGHT G-11-036232-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 195 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 3, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,

COUNT 196 - PERJURY
Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 3, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS

to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
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Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 197 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 3, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or rccorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-
13-039145-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 198 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 7, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-
039145-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.
COUNT 199 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 7, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS to
commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LL.C to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
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of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of MARTHA ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 200 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 7, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARTHA
ORNELAS G-13-039145-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 201 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 31, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of ROBERT SMITH G-14-039910-A, which document
claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 202 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 31, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of ROBERT SMITH G-14-039910-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
ROBERT SMITH G-14-039910-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,

which statement was material to the filing in question.

101
AA 0810




(=T H - B = R U B

A N T N e N e N L N e N T O T N S e S S S S S Y
00 ~1 G L B W N~ DY 0 -~ h L R W N e

COUNT 203 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 31, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of ROBERT SMITH G-14-
039910-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 204 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 28, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of LARRY COBLE G-10-035166-
A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not
in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing
in question.

COUNT 208 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about May 28, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of LARRY COBLE G-10-035166-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of LARRY COBLE G-10-035166-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and

duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 206 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 28, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,

knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
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or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of LARRY
COBLE G-10-035166-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 207 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 185, 2016, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of LINDA FISHER G-14-041060-A,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 208 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 15, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of LINDA FISHER G-14-041060-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of LINDA FISHER G-14-041060-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 209 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016, willfully, unlawfuliy,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing falsc statements in the guardianship case of LINDA

1
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FISHER G-14-041060-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada,
COUNT 210 - PERJURY

Defcndant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 24, 20135, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Account, in the
guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 211 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 24, 2018, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Account, in the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-
14-040243-A, which documcnt claimed that APRIL. PARKS was owed fees for services
rendered that were not in fact rcndered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement
was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 212 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 24, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a fals¢ or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Account, containing false
statements in the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.
i
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COUNT 213 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 20, 2016, willfully make a fhlse
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-
040243-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendecred that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.

COUNT 214 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about February 20, 2016, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in
the guardianship case of EDWARD ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, which document claimed
that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the
extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 215 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 20, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of EDWARD
ATHERTON G-14-040243-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 216 - PERJURY
Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 13, 2016, willfully make a false

statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
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Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of CHARLES MADDERA G-12-
038107-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.
COUNT 217 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about May 13, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of CHARLES MADDERA G-12-038107-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of CHARLES MADDERA G-12-038107-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 218 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about May 13, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of CHARLES
MADDERA G-12-038107-A, which instrument, if’ genuine, might be filed, registered or
recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 219 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 7, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-A, which document
7/
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claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 220 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 7, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS to
commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of REX
LYONS G-14-040310-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for
services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 221 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 7, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-
A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under
any law of the State of Nevada,
COUNT 222 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-A,
which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,

1
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COUNT 223 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 18§, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of REX LYONS G-14-040310-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 224 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 15, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of REX
LYONS G-14-040310-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 225 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 13, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.

COUNT 226 - PERJURY
Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about August 13, 2014, suborn APRIL

PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
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A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS
was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 227 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 13, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-
037395-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 228 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 20, 2016, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-[2-
037395-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that
werc not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.
COUNT 229 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about February 20, 2016, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
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penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in
the guardianship case of MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the flling in question.
COUNT 230 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 20, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of
MARLENE HOMER G-12-037395-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 231 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 9, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, which document
claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered
to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 232 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about January 9, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of serviges provided
in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which

statcment was material to the filing in qucstion.
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COUNT 233 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 9, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court,’ to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-
037438-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 234 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about September 29, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and
Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question,

CQUNT 235 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about September 29, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC 1o falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
MARIE LONG G-12-037438-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 236 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FCR FILING OR RECORD
Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about September 29, 2015, wilifully, unlawfully,

knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
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or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of MARIE LONG G-12-
037438-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public

office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 237 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 10, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting, Report of
Guardian of Person and Estate of RUDY NORTH, and/or a Petition for Instructions and
Authority to Sell Coins, containing false statements in the guardianship case of RUDY
NORTH G-13-039133-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 238 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 8, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: an Amended First Annual Accounting of
Guardianship Estate of RUDY NORTH, containing false statements in the guardianship case
of RUDY NORTH G-13-039133-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any ]Jaw of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 239 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 26, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second and Final Accounting of
Guardianship Estate of RUDY NORTH, containing false statements in the guardianship case
of RUDY NORTH G-13-039133-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

i
i
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COUNT 240 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about April 10, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting, Report of
Guardian of Person and Estate of RENNIE NORTH, and/or Petition for Instructions and
Authority to Sell Coins, containing false statements in the guardianship case of RENNIE
NORTH G-13-039132-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 241 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about May 8, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: an Amended First Annual Accounting of
Guardianship Estate of RENNIE NORTH, containing false statements in the guardianship case
of RENNIE NORTH G-13-039132-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 242 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about February 26, 2016, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Second and Final Accounting of
Guardianship Estate of RENNIE NORTH, containing false statements in the guardianship case
of RENNIE NORTH G-13-03%9132-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 243 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about August 20, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of HAROLD LOCKWOOD G-12-037193-A, which

document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendercd that were not in fact
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rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material te the flling in
question,
COUNT 244 - BERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or abeut August 20, 2018, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of HAROLD LOCKWOOD G-12-037193-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship
case of HAROLD LOCKWOOD G-12-037193-A, which document claimed that APRIL
PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 245 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about August 20, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of HAROLD LOCKWOOD G-
12-037193-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 246 - PERJURY

Defcndant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 20, 2014, wilifully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition of Guardian APRIL PARKS
to Withdraw and Petition for Approval of Fees and Costs, in the guardianship case of
NORBERT WILKENING G-13-038438-A, which document claimed that Defendant was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration
claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

7
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COUNT 247 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about December 20, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of NORBERT WILKENING G-13-038438-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a Petition of Guardian APRIL PARKS to Withdraw and Petition for
Approval of Fees and Costs, in the guardianship case of NORBERT WILKENING G-13-
038438-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered
that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material
to thelﬁling in question.
COUNT 248 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about December 20, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition of Guardian APRIL PARKS to
Withdraw and Petition for Approval of Fees and Costs, containing false statements in the
guardianship case of NORBERT WILKENING G-13-038438-A, which instrument, if
genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of
Nevada.
COUNT 249 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about October 30, 2013, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report
of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and For Termination of Guardianship, in the
guardianship case of ADOLFO GONZALEZ G-13-038316-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and

duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 250 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about October 30, 2013, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of ADOLFO GONZALEZ G-13-038316-A, knowing that
APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under
penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of
Fees and For Termination of Guardianship, in the guardianship case of ADOLFO
GONZALEZ G-13-038316-A, which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees
for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which
statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 251 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about October 30, 2013, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First and Final Account and Report of
Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and For Termination of Guardianship, containing false
statements in the guardianship case of ADOLFO GONZALEZ G-13-038316-A, which
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 252 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about June 19, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Account, Report of
Guardian and Petition for Confirmation of Sale of Personal Property, in the guardianship case
of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,
which statement was material to the filing in question.

i
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COUNT 253 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about June 19, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a First Annual Account, Report of Guardian and Petition for Confirmation of Sale of
Personal Property, in the guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, which
document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 254 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about June 19, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Account, Report of Guardian
and Petition for Confirmation of Sale of Personal Property, containing false statements in the
guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, which instrument, if genuine, might
be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 255 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL. PARKS did on or about March 25, 2016, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit; by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship
and Approve Final Accounting, in the guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-
A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not
in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing
in question.
I
I
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COUNT 256 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about March 25, 2016, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty of
perjury, a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in the
guardianship case of DELORES SMITH G-13-039454-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 257 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about March 25, 2016, willtully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and
Approve Final Accounting, containing false statements in the guardianship case of DELORES
SMITH G-13-039454-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded
in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 258 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 31, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penality of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First and Second Annual Accounting
Combined and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-
032515-A, which document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that
were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to
the filing in question.

COUNT 2359 - PERJURY
Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 31, 2015, suborn APRIL PARKS

to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
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Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, knowing that APRIL PARKS
would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penally of
perjury, a First and Second Annual Accounting Combined and Report of Guardian, in the
guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, which document claimed that
APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent
and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 260 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 31, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First and Second Annual Accounting
Combined and Report of Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of
LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered
or recorded in a public office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 261 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 14, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a Third Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, which document
claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to
the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 262 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about November 14, 2014, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services
provided in the guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty

of perjury, a Third Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
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LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-032515-A, which document claimed that APRIL. PARKS was owed
fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed,
which statement was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 263 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about November 14, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Third Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of LINDA PHILLIPS G-08-
032515-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.
COUNT 264 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 14, 2014, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report
of Guardian, in the guardianship case of FRANK PAPAPIETRO G-12-037226-A, which
document claimed that Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact
rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in
question.
COUNT 265 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about July 14, 2014, suborn APRIL PARKS
to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of A Private
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services provided
in the guardianship case of FRANK PAPAPIETRO G-12-037226-A, knowing that APRIL
PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under penalty
of perjury, a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, in the guardianship case of
FRANK PAPAPIETRO G-12-037226-A, which document claimed that APRIL. PARKS was
owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration

claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.
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COUNT 266 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 14, 2014, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First Annual Accounting and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of FRANK PAPAPIETRO G-
12-037226-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 267 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about July 17, 2015, willfully, unlawfuily,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a Response to Objection to First Annual
Accounting and Report of Guardian and Amended First Annual Account and Report of
Guardian, containing false statements in the guardianship case of FRANK PAPAPIETRO G-
12-037226-A, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public
office under any law of the State of Nevada.

COUNT 268 - PERJURY

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 30, 2015, willfully make a false
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, to wit: by offering for filing with the
Clark County District Court, under penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report
of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and Termination of Guardianship, in the
guardianship case of BARBARA NEELY G-14-040873-A, which document claimed that
Defendant was owed fees for services rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and
duration claimed, which statement was material to the filing in question.

COUNT 269 - PERJURY

Defendant MARK SIMMONS did on or about January 30, 2015, suborn APRIL
PARKS to commit perjury, to wit: by falsifying records and/or instructing other employees of
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records, of the amount and value of services

provided in the guardianship case of BARBARA NEELY G-14-040873-A, knowing that
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APRIL PARKS would knowingly offer for filing with the Clark County District Court, under

penalty of perjury, a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of
Fees and Termination of Guardianship, in the guardianship case of BARBARA NEELY G-
14-040873-A,. which document claimed that APRIL PARKS was owed fees for services
rendered that were not in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed, which statement
was material to the filing in question.
COUNT 270 - OFFERING FALSE INSTRUMENT FOR FILING OR RECORD

Defendant APRIL PARKS did on or about January 30, 2015, willfully, unlawfully,
knowingly and feloniously, procure or offer a false or forged instrument to be filed, registered
or recorded at Clark County District Court, to wit: a First and Final Account and Report of
Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and Termination of Guardianship, containing false
statements in the guardianship case of BARBARA NEELY G-14-040873-A, which
instrument, 1f genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law
of the State of Nevada.

DATED this _'?i day of March, 2017.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

ADAM P. LAXALT

Nevada Attorney General

Nevada Bar#o%%\—/
BY

JAY P. RAMAN
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #010193

BY
Senior Depﬁg Attorney General
Nevada Bar #010273
ENDORSEMENT: A True Bill
)
I}érepérson, CldrkLCounty Grand Jury
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Names of Witnesses and testifying before the Grand Jury:
BISHOP, TODD

EUGENIO, JOSEPHINE
FORD, DIANE
HAYNES, COLIN
KEILTY, EDWARD
KELLY, KAREN
KRAMER, HEIDI
LIEBO, JULIE
NORHEIM, JON
O’MALLEY, JACLYN
SANCHEZ, ANGELICA
WOODRUM, HOMA

Additional Witnesses known to the District Attorney or Attorney General at time of filing the

Indictment:
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, CCDC

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD COMMUNICATIONS
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS, LVMPD RECORDS

16AGJ151A-D/mc-GJ
LVMPD EV#1508192043
(TK)
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

APRIL PARKS,
Supreme Court Case No. 82876

Appellant,
VS.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing document was filed electronically
with the Nevada Supreme Court on the 7th day of September, 2021.
Electronic Service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance
with the Master Service List as follows:
Steven B. Wolfson, Clark County District Attorneys Office

Aaron Ford, Nevada Attorney General
Jamie J. Resch, Resch Law, PLLC d/b/a Conviction Solutions

Employee, Resch Law, P%d/b/a Conviction Solutions





